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INSURANCE CO.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Empire Insurance Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
lrnancial statements for the years ended December 31,2015 and2014, including the additional components attached
therein, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility
includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the stockholders.

M. A. Mercado & Co. and Teodoro Santamaria Canlas & Co. the independent auditors, appointed by the

stockholdersfortheperiodDecember3l,20l5 and2014,respectively,haveexaminedthefinancial statementsof
the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in their report to the stockholders, have

expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examinations.

t

BENEDICTO L. MA. G. SANTOS ROMAN L. SANTOS
TreasurerChairman of the Board President

Signed this l5'h day of April, 2016
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II{DEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Shareholders and the Board of Directors
Empire Insurance Company
2no Floor Prudential Life Plan Bldg.
843 A. Amaiz Street, Makati City

M. A. MERCADO & Co.
Certifi ed Public Accountants
2109 Cityland 10 Tower 1

156 H.V Dela Costa Street
68'15 Ayala Avenue North
1226 Makati City, Philippines

Phone +63 (2) 894-5783
+63 (2) 893-1 509
+63 (2) 894-4793
mercado_cpas@yahoo.com

Fax:

E-mail:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Empire Insurance Company, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 3 I , 201 5 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such intemal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgment, including the assessment ofthe
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufiicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opitrior

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position ofEmpire
Insurance Company as of December 31, 2015, and its financial performanc.e and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Othcr Matter

The financial statements of Empire lnsurance Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 was
audited by another independent auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on April 16,

2015.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under R€venue Regulations 19-2011 and 15-2010

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
The supplementary information contained on taxes, duties and licenses fee in Note 32 to the financial statements is
presented for purposes offiling with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a requir€d part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in our audit ofthe basic financial statements. ln our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material

respects in r€lation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

M.A. MERCADO & CO.

Ab"*'lr,^*
MARCELINO A. MERCADO
Pirtner (signinglor the linn)
CPA Li@nse No.066885
Tax Idedtification No. 102-921-222
P.T.R. No.5334717; Issued on January6,20l5, Makati City
BIR Accreditation No. 0E{03338-2-201 5

Issued September 29,2015: Valid until September 29, 2018
IC Accreditation No. SP-2015{03O
Issued April 7, 2015; Valid until April7,2018
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. ofReg. No. 5658

Issued February 17,2015; Valid until Decemb€r 31,2017
Firm's BIR Accreditation No. 08{061 73{00-201 5

Issued March 26,2015; Valid unlil March26,20l8
Firm's IC Acareditation No.F-201 5{01 -O
Issued April7,20l5: Valid until April7,2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1533-A (Group C)
lssu€d February 3,2016; valid untilFebruary 2,2019
Firn's sEC Accreditation No. 0320-F (Group C)
Issued February 3, 2016; Valid unti, February 2, 2019

April 15,2016
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF FTNANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Notes 2015 2014

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Premiums due from ceding companies

Reinsurance recoverable on losses

Premiums receivable

Commission receivable

Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies
Salvage recoverable

Receivables

Current tax assets

Non current assets

Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets

Property and equipment
Pension asset

Other non-current assets

Deferred tax asset, net

2,4,27 P
2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2

129,198,526 P

16,395,472

44,346,327

35,257,742

I 1,831,620

12,631,592

863,982

6,879,561
l,g65,0gg

4t,575,606
t7,231,421
82,839,253

29,469,079

1 1, I 93,584

1 I,120,255
977,355

2,030,222
t,397,492

200,4s3,720

206,735,379

s,22s,195
4,963,867

1,766,517

6,071,701

2,7,27

2,8,27

2,3,9
2,18

2,10

2,25

17r,900,970

175,632,987

6,162,821

3,445,777
4,447,776

6,177,952

367,768,283 425,216,379

P 641,639,473 P 638,

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Claims payable

Premiums due to reinsurers

Commission payable

Reserve for uneamed premiums

Premiums reserve withheld for reinsurers

Payables

Other liabilities

Equity
Share capital

Retained eamings

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale

financial assets

Treasury stocks
Remeasurement gain

2,11,2't
2,r2,27
2,13,2',1

2,r4,27
2,15,27

2,16,27

2,19

20

73,238,687

58,635,303
28,208,670

51,565,74't

2,577,220

2,927,867

2s0,000,000

108,509,641

48,723,794
(76,886)

2,669,87s

250,000,000

123,797,366

45,065,520
(76,886)

2,103,014

P 57,009,940 P

54,376,807

29,849,845

60,008,9E8

2,577,220

3,019,312

17

2,8,27

2,19

2,18

420,889,014 409,826,424

P 641,639,473 P 638,485,461

See Accompanying Notes lo Financial Statements.
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT ORLOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Notes 20r5 2014

Underwriting income

Underwriting expense

2,3,22

2.3.22

P 140,767,207 P 116,706,203

(83. 136,953)

Net underwriting income

Other income

Investnent

Gain on sale ofinvestnent

Gain on sale of property

Others

2,22

2,23

2

2

2

39,293,401 33,569,250

12,215,48611,344,167

l,04g,gg7

325,202

264339 758,797

r2.983.695 12.974.283

Total underwriting and other income

Other direct costs

52,277,096

15,515,621

2s,698.959

46,543,533

14,694,914

19,923,295General and admiinistrative expenses

224

2,24

Operating profit before finance income

Finance income, net

Foreign exchange (loss) gain

Dividend income

I 1,062,516 tL,925,324

2,3,27

2

(1EUE7)

7,036,937

42,588

6,977,622

7.020.2t0

Profit before bonus

Bonus 2

17911,966 18,945,534

(2,841,830)79s)

Profit before income tax

Benefit from income tax ))<

15,225,171

(62,554)

16,103,704

(1.054.1 l5)

Net profit for the year 15,287,725 t7 ,157,819

Other comprehensive (loss) income

to be reclassified to profit or loss

Net (loss) gain on available-for-sale financial assets

Tax effect

2,8,27 (3,676,414)

18,140

1,772,650

18,863)

[1!6lEr74) 1,763,787

Other comprehensive loss

nol to be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement loss

Tax effect

2,18 (E09,802)

242,941

(1,938,03 l)
581,409

(566.E6r) (1.356.622\

IoJqls@ P 11,062,590 P t7,564,984

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted

2,26

P 6.12 P 6.85

Book value pSf !L4Ie ?20 P 168.36 P 163.93

See Accompanying Notes lo Financial Statements.
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EMPIRE INSTJRANCE COMPAI\TY

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUTTY

Year Ended December 31,2015

Share

capital
(Note 19) (Note 20) (Notes 2,8,27)

Retained Net unrealized gain on

earnings AFS financial assets

Treasury Remeasurement

stocks Gain
(Note 19) (Notes 2, 18) Total

Balances at January l, 2015

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

P 250,000,000 P 108,509,641 P

15,287,725

4E,723,794 P (76,EE6) P

(3,658,274)

2,669,875 P

(566,861)

409,E26,424

15,287,725

(4,225,135)

Total comprehensive income for the year 11.062,590

Balances at December 3 1, 2015 P 250,000,000 P 123;797366 P 45,065,520 P(76,886) P 2,103,014 P 420,889,014

Year Ended December 3 l, 2014

Share

capital

(Note 19)

Retained

earnings

Treasury

stocks

(Note 19)

Remeasurement

Gain

(Notes 2, 18)CNote 20)

Net unrealized gain on

A-FS financial assets

(Notes 2,8,27) Total

Balances at January l, 2014

Net profit for the year

Othcr comprchcnsive income (loss)

P 250,000,000 P 9t,35t,822 P

17 ,r57,8r9

46,960,007 P(76,886) P 4,026,497 r tj1,,rr:j,:rj

1,763,787 - (r,3s6,622) 407,16s

Total comprehensive income for the year 17,564,984

BalancesatDecember3l,2Ol4 P250,000,000 P 108,509,641 P 48,723,794 P(76,886) P 2,669,875 P 409,826,424

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Notes 2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax

Adjustrnents for:

Depreciation and amortization

Retirement expense

lnterest income

Dividend income

Foreigr exchange (loss) gain

P 15,225,171 P 16,103,704

2,3,9

2,18
2,23

2

2,3,27

1,835,075

70E,288
(11"344,167)

Q,036,937)
lE7,4E7

1,611,927

492,238
(12,215,486)

(6,977,622)
(42,588)

Operating loss before working capital changes

Changes in assets andliabilities:
(lncrease) Decrease in:

Premiums due from ceding companies

Reinsurance recoverable on losses

Premiums receivable

Commission receivable

Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies
Salvage recoverable
Receivables

Other current assets

Other non-current assets

lncrease (Decrease) in:
Claims payable

Premiums due to reinsurers

Commission payable

Reserve for uneamed premiums

Premiums reserve withheld for reinsurers

Payables

Other liabilitites

(425,083) (r,027,827)

2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,s,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,5,27

2,3,s,2',1

2,3,5,21

2,6,27

2,t0

2,1t,27
2,r2,27
2,13,27

2,14,27

2,15,27
2,16,27

2,17

835,949

38,492,926
(5,78E,663)

(638,036)

(1,51rJ37)
rr3p73

(4,849,339)

583,323
(2,6E1,259)

(16,22E;747)

(4,25E,496)

1,641,175

8443,241

91,445
2,402,904

2,379,308
(29,038,7t2)
(9,99s,6s8)

(596,077\
(188,979)

416,617

16,799
68,229

(634,909)

11,421,924

3,7 I 5,506

7,158,231

8,583,935
(2,62s,210)
2,043,224

(2,062,801)

Cash provided by (used in) operations 16,223,276 (10,366,400)

Interestreceived 2,4,23 699,191 245,381

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Dividends received

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets

Purchase of held-to-maturity financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity financial assets

Purchase ofproperty and equipment

)
2

2,8,27
2,8,27
2,7,27

2,7,27

2.3.9

10,644,976

7,036,937
(19904,2421
47330,220

2E,552,750

Q.772.70t1

l 1,970,105

6,977,622
(28,5 l 5,648)

(892,000)

26,500,000
(2.180.575)

Net cash provided by investing activities 70,887,940 13,859,504

Balance carried forward 87,810,407 3,738,485
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPAI{Y

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 3l
Notes 2015 2014

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTTVITIES 16,922,467 (10,121,0t9)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 70,E87840 r3,859,s04

EFI'ECT OF f,XCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS 2,3 (187,487) 42,588

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS, JANUARY I

2,4,27 87,622,920 3,781,073

4r.575.606 37.794.533

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 2.4.27P129.198.526P41.575.506

See Accompanying Notes to Finoncial Statements.

hlAY 0 2 2016

,rtiL-,
RORAAUiA

LAt{$E
i"li

TV

r:1 1 t-

Datt+

-i iiivibt':'

I btD



l-

EMPIRE INST]RANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATEINFORMATION

Empire Insurance Company (the Company) was incorporated on December 8, 1949 to engage in the
business and operation of all kinds of insurance, reinsurance, insurance on buildings, automobiles, car
and other motor vehicles, goods and merchandise, goods in transit, goods in storage, fire insurance,
earthquake insurance, insurance against accidents, all other forms of undertaking to indemnify any
person against loss, damage or liability arising from unknown or contingent events, except life
insurance.

On May 26, 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission approved the Company's application of
extension ofamended Articles oflncorporation to extend its life for another Fifty (50) years.

The registered office address of the Company is 2nd Floor Prudential Life Plan Bldg., 843 A. Arnaiz
Street, Makati City.

The financial statements of the Company were authorized for issue on April 15, 2016.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The more significant accounting policies and practices of the Company are summarized below to facilitate
the understanding of data presented in the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards

(PAS) and interpretation, which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council
(FRSC) and adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including SEC

pronouncements.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for available-
for-sale investments that have been measured at fair value and Held-to-maturity investments measured at

amortized cost. The Company's financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, which is the

functional and presentation currency under PFRS. All values are rounded to the nearest peso except as

otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the

Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgment or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with the PFRS.

Current versus Non-current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-

current classification. An asset is cunent when it is:

r Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
r Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A liabilitv is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. It is held primarily for the purpose oftrading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-cunent.

Defered tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curent assets and liabilities.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial inshuments at fair value at each financial position date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an ass€t or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
trcnsaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use ofunobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level I that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
Level 3- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs)

Chauges itr Accoutrtins Policies
The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of
the fi nancial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have been appliad consistently to all periods presented in these

financial statements, except for the changes in accounting policies as explained below.

Ncw and amepded statrdards adopted by the Compapy
The Company has applied for the fimt time the following applicable new and revised accounting

standards. Except for these standards and amended PFRS lvhich were adopted as of January 2015, the

accounting policies adopted are consistent with those ofthe previous financial year.

PAS 19, Enployee Benefi* - DeJined Benefit Plans: Employee Con,ributions (Anendnents)
The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans.

Contributions that arc set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as reductions to
current service costs ifthey are linked to service or as part ofthe rcmeasurements ofthe net defined

9
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service. Contributions that are discretionary shall be

accounted for as reductions of current service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plans.

This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January l, 2015. The adoption of
this amendment did not have any impact in the Company's financial statement since the Cornpany's plan

is non-contributory.

Annusl In provemetus to PFRS (2010-2012 Cycle)
Annual improvements to PFRS consist of non-urgent but necessary amendments to the following
standards. Except as otherwise stated, the adoption of these amendments did not have a significant
impact on the Company.

PFRS 2, Share-based Poyment - Defrnition of Vesting Condition
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of
performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

. A performance condition must contain a service condition

. A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering a service

. A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group

. A p€rformance condition must be a market or non-market condition

. If the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting
period, the service condition is not satisfied.

PFRS 3, Ezsizess Combinations - Accountinglor Continge t Considerution in q Business Cor\bi alion
This amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after July 1, 2014. lt claxifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope ofPAS
39.

PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation ol Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of
the Reportqble Segments' Assels to lhe Entity's Assels
The amendments are applied retrospectively alld olarify that:

. An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggegation
criteria in the standards, including a brief description of operati[g segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g, sales and gross margins) used to assess
whether the segments are "similar".

. The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required
disclosure for segment liabilities.

PAS 16. Propery, Planl and Equipment: Reralualion Method - Proportionqte Restatemefi ol
Accumulated Depreciation, and PAS 38. ftra4gible Assets: Rel,aluation Method - Proportionate
Restqleme ofAccumula@d Amortization
The amendment clarifies that when an item of Foperty, plant and equipment is revalued, treatrnent shall
be one ofthe following ways:

The gross carrying amount is restated in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount. Accumulated depreciation is the difference between the gross and the net
carrying amount.

The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
while the net amount is restated to the revalued amount ofthe asset.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July l, 2014. They shall apply to all
revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after the date ofthe initial application ofthis
amendment and in the immediately preceding annual period.

10



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PAS24, Relaled Party Disclosures - Key Management personnel
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies the definition ofa,relatod party, shall extend to
include management entities or a member of its group that renders key management personnel services
to the entity. The amendments require also a sepamte disclosue ofthe amount recognized as expense by
an entity fol the provision of key management personnel services that are provided by a separate
management entity.

Annual Improvements lo PFRS (2011-2013 Cvcle)
Annual improvements to PFRS oonsist of non-urgent but necessary amendments to the following
standards. Except as otherwiso stated, the adoption of these amendments did not have a significant
impact on the Company.

PFRS 3. Basiress Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements
The &mendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope exceptions
within PFRS 3:

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied
not only to the financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to the other conhacts within the scope of
PAS 39.

P AS 40, lnestment Property
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary
services in PAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business
combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only differentiates between investment
and owner-occupied property (i.e., property, plant and equipment).

Defened

Philippine Interyretatior IFRIC 15 , Agreemertfor Constuction ol Reql Estqte
The implementation ofthe Philippine Interpretation is deferred until the final Review Standard is issued

by IASB and after an evaluation on the requirements and guidance in the standard vis-d-vis the practices

and r€gulations in the Philippine real estate industry is completed. This Philippine Interpretation covers
accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate

directly or through subcontractors. This Philippine Interpretation rcquircs that revenue on constuction of
real estate be recognized only upon completion, except whon such contract qualifies as construction
contact to be accounted for under PAS I l, Construction Conracts, or involves rendering of services in
which case revenue is rccognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of
services with the construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership ar€ transferred to
the buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The
interpretation will have no impact to the financial position or performance ofthe Company,

Futurc Standards Elfedite lanuary 1, 2016:

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipmen, arld PAS 38. ldangible Assets - Classilication of Acceplable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortizalion (Amendnents)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattem ofeconomic
b€nefits that are generated from operating a business (ofwhich the asset is part) rather than the economic
benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used

to depreciate prcperty, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to

. Joilt armngements, notjustjoint ventures, are outsid€ the scope PFRS 3.

. This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The lollowing sl@ndards an.l amendmenls have been issued but ta)ere not let effeclive as of December
31,2015.
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amortize intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on

or after January 1, 20i6, with early adoption pemitted. These amendments are not expected to have

impact to the Company since it has not used a revenue-based method to deEeciate its non-current asset.

PAS 16, Property, Plqnt and Equipment, ar,dPAS 41, Agriculture - Beoret Planrs (Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting rcquirements for biological assets tllat meet the definition of
bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will no

longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After initial recognition, bearer plants

will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before maturity) and using either the cost model or
revaluation model (after maturity). The amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer

plants will remain in the scope of PAS 4l measured at fair value l€ss costs to sell. For govemment
grants related to bearer plants, PAS 20, Accounting Jor Government Grafis qnd Disclosure of
Govenrment Assistance, will apply. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods

beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not
expected to have impact to the Company since it does not have any bearer plants.

P!552J., Separate Financial Slatements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Auendmefll)

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for its investment in
subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates in their separate financial statements, Entities already applying
PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its sepamte financial statements will have to apply
that change retrospectively. For the first- time adopters of PFRS electing to use the equity method is its
separate financial statements, they will be required to apply this method from the date of transition to
PFRS. The amendments arc €ffective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,

2016, with early adoption permitled. The amendment will not have a significant impact on the
Company's financial performance and financial position.

PFRS 11. Joi l Arrangeuenls - Accounting for Acqukitions ol Intercsts i Joinl Operations
(Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS il require that a joint venture opemtor accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity ofthejoint operation constitutes a business must apply
the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that
a previously held interest in a joint operation is not rcmeasured on the acquisition of an additional
interest in the samejoint operation while joint contrcl is retained. In addition, a scope ofexclusion has
been added to PFRS ll to sp€cify that the amendments do not apply when the parties shadng joint
control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling pafiy.

These amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joirt operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same operation and are prospectively effective for annual;
periods beginning on or after January l, 2016. These amendments will not have a significant impact on
the Company's financial performance and financial position.

PFRS 14, Regulatory DeJerral Accouns
PRFS t4 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-regulation, to
continue applying most of its edsting accounting policies for regulatory defenal account balances upon
its first-time adoption ofPFRS. PFRS l4 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January l,
2016. Sincs the Company is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard would not apply.

P AS l. Presentation ol Financial Statement; - Disclosure lniliarive (Amendments)
These amendments arc intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the presentation
and disclosure requirement in PFRS. They clarify the following:

. That entities shall not reduce the unde$tandability of their financial statements by either
obscuring material information with immaterial information; or aggegating material items that
have different natures or functions

. That specific line items in the statement of income and OCI and the statement of financial
statements may be disaggregated

. That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to finanoial
statements
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r That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method

must be presented ir aggregate as a single line item and classified between those items that will
or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,

Early application is permitted and entities do not need to disclose that faat as the amendments are

considered to be clarifications that do not affect an entity's accounting policies or accounting estimates.

These amendments will not have a significant impact on the company's financial position and financial

performance.

PFRS t0, Cozsolidrted Financial Stotemenls, BEBS-IZ Disclosure ol Interests in Other entities. and

PAS 28. ItNestments in Associqtes qnd Join Ventures - IrNestme Dnifies: Applying the Consolidation

Ex c e pli on (Amendments)
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated financial

statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investrnent entity that measures all of its
subsidiaries at fair value and that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment

entity itself and that provides support servioes to the investment entity parcnt is consolidated. The

amendment also allow an investor (that is not an investment entity and has an investment entity associate

orjoint venture), when applying the equity method, to rctain the fair value measuremelt applied by the

investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments are

effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments are not applicable

to the Company since the Company is not arl investment entity nor does it have investment entity
associates.

Annual Imuovenents lo PFRSs (2012-2014 Cvcle)
Amual improvements to PFRS consist of non-urgent but [ecessary amendments to the following
standards. Except as other'rr'ise stated, the adoption of these amendments did not have a significant
impact on the Company.

Elfeclive ,Ianuary 1, 2016:

Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from disposal though sale to a
disposal through distribution to owners and viae-versa should not be considered to be a new plan of
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of the
application of the requirements PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification.

l, Financial Instrumenls: Disclosures - Servicing Contracls
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transfened asset
that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee
can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature ofthe fee
and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required.
The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
continuing involvement will need to be done retoospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not
required to be provided for any period beginning before the arurual period in which the entity first
applies the amendments.

PFRS '1, Applicability of the Amendmen$ ro PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements
(Amendments)
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report unless they
provide a significant update to the information reported in a most recent annual repofi.

PFRS 19, Employee Benelits - ReEioral Ma*et lssue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth ofhigh quality corporate bonds
is assessed based on the cunency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where

t3



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPAIYY

the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high of quality corporate bonds in that
currency, govemment bond rates must be used.

PFRS 34, Interin Financial Reporting - Disclosure oJ l\formation "Elsewhere in the Interim Firwnciql
Report "
This amendment is applied retrospectively and cladfies that the required interim disclosures must either
be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial
statements and wherever they are included the greater interim financial report (e.i. in the management
commentary or risk report).

Ellecliv e lanu ary 1, 2 0 1 8 :

PFRS 9, Financial Inslruments (2014 orfnal version)
In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Financial Instrumelrts, was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases

of the financial instruments projects and replaces PAS 39, Financiql Instraments: Recognition and
Measurement, and all version of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requircments for classification
and measurement, impairment, and hedge accoutting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 is
permitled ifthe date of initial application is before February 1, 2015. The adoption ofthis standard will
have an effect on the classification and measurement ofthe Company's financial assets but will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Company's financial liabilities. The Company is
curently assessing the impact ofadopting this standard.

The following net) slandard and amendmenls issued by lhe IASB hos not yet been adopted by the
I,nsc,'

IFRS 15, Retenue Jrotn Contracts with Cuslomers
This standard was issued on May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects
the consideration io which an entity expects to be entitled in an exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured apprcach to measuring and

recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrcspective application
is required for annual periods beginning on or after January l, 2018 with aaxly adoption permitted. The
Company is culrently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the ne\ry standards on the
required effective date once adopted locally.

IEBL!.!', Zeases

This standard was issued in January 2016. Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their
leases as either operating or finance leases in accordance with IAS 17. Rather, leases will apply the
single-asset model, wherein lessees will recognize the assets and the related liabilities for most leases in
their balance sheets and, subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the lease

liabilities in their profit or loss. The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard

carries forward the p nciples of lessor accounting under IAS 17, Lesso$, however, will be required to
disclose more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual
value. The new standard is effective for annual pedods beginning on or after January l, 2019, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to adopt the
new standards on the requircd effective date once adopted locally.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements ar€ set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Cash and Cash Eouivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are temporary plaaements with maturity of
less than thrce (3) months which can be withdrawn anytime depending on the immediate cash

rcquirement of the Company
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Inveslment Contrqcts
lnsurance premiums are recognized directly as liabilities. Revenue consists offees deducted for policy
administration and surrender charges. Interest or changes in the unit p ces credited to the account
balances and excess benefit claims incurred in the period are charged as expenses in the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The Company, however, has no investment contracts,

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (DAC)
Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to secu ng new contracts and

renewing existing contacts are deferred and charged to expense in proportion to the premium revenue

recognized. Subsequently, these costs are amortiz€d ovor the terms ofthe policies as premium is oamed

on a straight line basis using the 24th method over the life ofthe contract except for marine cargo where
commissions for the last two months of the year are recognized as expense the following year.

Amortization is charged against the statement of profit or loss. The unamortized acquisition costs are

shown in the assets section of the statement of financial position. All other costs are recognized as

expense when incurred.

A review on impairment is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when an

indication of impairment arises. The carrying value is written down to the recoverable amount and the
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Liqb ility A de quacy Te s I
At each financial position date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ansure the adequacy of the
contruct liabilities net of related DAC. In performing these t€sts, current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income
from the assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to profit or
loss initially by writing off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from
liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision).

Any DAC written offas a result ofthis test cannot subsequently be reinstated.

Reinsurance C ontrac ts He ld
Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which it is compensated for losses on one

or more contracts issued by the Company and meet the classification requircments for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance corhacts held. Conaacts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets. lnsurance contracts entered into by the Company under
which the contract holder is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts.
The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognized as

reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
telm receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsureB are measured consistently
with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contacts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognized as an expense when due.

Recei|ables and Payables relaledto Ins rance Conttacts and lruesbnent Contracts
Receivables and payables are recognized when due. These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognized that impairment loss in the
statements of profit or loss and othel comprehensive income. The Company gathers the objective
evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for loans and
receivables. The impairment loss is also calculated under the same method used for these financial
assets.
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All financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All financial assets that are not olassified at a fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.

The foregoing categories offinancial instruments are more fully described below.

Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term or if so designated by the management. Derivatives assets, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified as at fair value through profit or loss unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Initial recognition qnd measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value. Transactions costs
incurred for the acquisition ofthe financial assets are directly expensed outright.

Sa bse que nt meqsure ment
Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets included in this category arc measued at fair value
with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets originally designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss may not subsequently be reclassified,

The Company has no investment classified under this category

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
are not quoted in an active market. They axe not entercd into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resale and are not classified as other financial assets held for trading, designated as AFS financial
assets or securities at FVPL.

Subse que nl measure me nt
After initial measurement, loans and receivables axe subsequerfly measued at amortized cost using the
EIR method, allowances or reversals ofallowances being made where necessary on remeasuring.

Impairment of Financial Assets
A loan and receivable is deemed impaired when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on

loan and receivables has been incurred. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss when the

Ioans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, and through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables includes cash and cash equivalents, premiums due from ceding companies,
reinsurance recoverable on losses, premiums receivable, commission receivable, premiums reserve

withheld by ceding companies, salvage recoverable and other receivables in the statement of financial
position.

Financial Assets
Financial assets include cash and other financial instruments. Financial assets, other than hedging
instruments, are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value tluough profit or

loss (F\?L), receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. The designation offinancial assets
is r€-evaluated at every reporting date at which date a choice ofclassification or accounting treatment is
available, subject to compliance with specific provisions ofapplicable accounting standards.

t6

Initial recognilion qnd measurcment
Loans and receivables are initially recognizEd at fair value plus transaction costs that arc directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuanae of the financial asset. The fair value of the loan receivable at

initial recognition is normally the transaction price, meaning the amount ofthe loan granted.
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Sub se quent me asure me nl
After initial recognition, changes in the fair value of AFS investments are recognized in equity, except
for the foreign exchange fluctuations on AFS debt secu ties and the related effective interest which are
taken dircctly to the stat€ments of prcfit or loss and other comprehensive income. These changes in fair
values are recognized in equity until the investment is sold, collectad or otherwise disposed of, or until
the investment is detemined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity are included in the statements ofprofit or loss and other comprehensive income.

In case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investm€nt below its cost. When a

decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in other
comprehensive income reserye account and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income reserve account is reclassified
from other comprehensive income reserve account to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even

though the financial asset has not been derccognized. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
rcclassified from other comprehensive income account to profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and curent fair value, less any
impaiment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses

recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument are not reversed in profit or loss.

Subsequent increases in the fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income reserve account.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as

financial assets carried at amortized cost. Intercst continues to be accrued at the original effective interest
rate on the reduced carrying amount ofthe asset and is recorded as part of intercst income in the prcIit or
loss. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increased and the inqease can be

objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the profit or loss,

the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.
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Available-for-Sale Investments
Financial assets of the company include available-for-sale investments. AFs investments are those non-
derivative financial assets that are designated as AFs or are not classified in any of the three other
categories. AFS investments include financial assets not quoted in an active market and are classified as

AFS when purchased and held indefinitely, but which the Company anticipates to sell in response to
liquidity requirements or in anticipation ofchanges in interest rates or other factorc. Financial assets may
be designated under this category provided such arc not held for hading.

Initial recognitioh and measwemebt
AFS investments are recognized initially at fair value. The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid p ces at the close
ofbusiness as at the date of financial position. AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measure zue measued at oost less any
impairment losses at end ofeach reporting period.

Impqirmed of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairmett as a result of
one or more events that has occured after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event')
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows ofthe financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the bonower or a group of boffowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measuable decrease in
the estimatod future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that conelate with
defaults.
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Held-to-Matu tY Investments
HTM investments include non-dedvative financial assets with fixed or deteminable payments and fixed
maturities for which the Company's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to

maturity. Where the Company sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire
category would be tainted and classified as AFS investments.

Inirial rec ognition and meqsurcmenl
Held-to-maturity investments are initially recorded at fair value plus transactions costs that are dircctly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial asset. The fair value is usually the actual
transaction price on the transaction date.

Su b se q uenl me asure me nt
Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective int€rest
method. In addition, ifthere is objective evidence that the investment has been impaired, the financial
asset is measured at the present value of estimated cash flovs. Any changes to the carrying amount of
the investment are recognized in profit or loss.

Imryirmed of Financial Assets
Ifthere is objective evidence that a financial assets caried at amortized cost is impaired, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference betwsen the asset's carrying amount and tlle present value of the
estimated futue cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate ofthe financial asset.

The carrying amount ofthe asset is reduced through the use ofan allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized under "asset impairment" in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss increases or
decreases because ofan event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognized in the statements profit or loss and other ofcomprehensive income, to
the extent that the carrying value ofthe asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Ifa
future w te-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss.

Financiql liabilities
Atl financial liabilities are initially rccognized at the fair value of the considemtion received less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization plocess.

Other Financiql Liabilities
This category pertains to financial liabilities that arc not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL
upon the inception ofthe liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable costs. After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amo ized cost using the
effective interest method. When liabilities are impaired or derecognized, any gain and losses are

rccognized in the profit or loss.

Included in this category are the Company's claims payables, premiums due to reinsurers, commission
payable, reserved for unearned premiums, premiums reserve withheld for reinsuren and other payables
(except for tax liabilities).

The Company has no designated financial liability at FVPL.

Derecoenition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financiql Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized or removed from the Company's statements offinancial position where:
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. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Company rctains the right to receiye cash flows from the asse! but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material d€lay to a third pa y under a ,pass-through, anangement; oi

. the Company has transfeffed its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transfened
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transfened nor
rctained substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, but has transfered control ofthe asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transfered nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transfe[ed confol of the
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the trcnsferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original canying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Puchases and sales of investments are rcaognized or derecognized on bade date, the date on $,hich the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. At initial measurement, financial instrumeflts are
measured equal to their fair value including transaction costs, Transactions costs incurred at a
subsequent date related to the transfer or disposal of a financial inshument are not included in the
subsequent measurement of the financial inshument. Such costs are only included in the statements of
profit or loss and other comprchensive income when derecognition occurs. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
hansfened and the Company has transferred substantially a1l risks and rewards ofownership.

Financiql Liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when and only when obligation under liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition ofthe original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount rcported in the statements of
financial position if, and only if, there is a curently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

As at December 31,2015 and 2014, the Company is not off setting financial instruments in accordance

with PAS 32 aIld does not hav€ relevant offsetting arrangements. The Company is Fesenting its
financial assets and financial liabilities at gross amounts in the statement offinancial position.

Other Investments
Other investments which include real estate acquired and the Company's contribution to the Security
Fund are stated at cost. These are included in other non-cu[ent assets.

Impaiment of Reinsurance Coltracts
The Company assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course ofbusiness for nonlife insurance contracts
when applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as revenue or expenses in
the same manner as they would be ifthe reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account
the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to
reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a maruer consistent with the related

rcinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are pr€sented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contraatual rights are extinguished or expire
or when the contract is transferred to another party.
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The Company assesses at each financial position date whether there is objective evidence that a
reinsurcnce contract is impaired, A reinsurance contract is impaired if, and only if:

Property and Eouipment
Prcperty and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment
loss. When assets are sold or retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation and any allowance for
impairment are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from the disposal is included
in the statements of profit or loss.

The initial cost of property and equipm€nt comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to expense in the p€riod the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
future economic benelits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional
cost ofproperty and equipment.

Deprcciation is computed on a straightline basis over the following estimated useful lives ofthe assets:

Building
Building improvements
Leasehold and improvements
Office furniture and fixtures
Transportation equipment
Electonic Data Processing Machine

20 years

l-5 years

2-5 years

l-10 years

2-5 yeaxs

1-5 yea$

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the periods and
method of depreciation arc consistent with the expected pattem of economic benefits fmm items of
property and equipment.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Property and equipment and other non-culrent assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstanc€s indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and wher€ the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-
genemting units are written down to their recoverable amounts.

The estimated recoverable amount is the geater of an asset's net selling price and value in use. ln
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of money and the dsks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of prcfit or loss and other oomprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when that there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is
recorded in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. However, the inqeased
carrying amount of an asset due to reversal ofan impairment loss is recognized to the extent that it does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in p or years.
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there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the
reinsurance asset, that the cedant may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of the
contract; and

the event has reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the cedant will receive from the
reinsurer.
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Derecognilion of Nonfnancial Assets
An item of the property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition ofthe assets
(computed as the difference between the net disposal proce€ds and the canying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or Ioss in the year the assets is derecognized.

Share Capital
shares are classified as equity when tltere is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Inffemental
costs dircctly attributable to the issue ofequity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds, net of tax.

When the Company purchases the Company's equity shares capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable inoremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company's e4uity holders, Where such shares are subsequently sold, reissued or
otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in equity attributable to the Company's
equity holders, net of any directly attributable incrcmental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects.

The Company's share capital includes common stocks and treasury stocks

Retained eamings include all the accumulated eamings ofthe Company less dividends declared

Revenue Recogrition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

Insurance Contracts and lnvestment Contracts

(a) Recognition and Measurement

S hort- te r m ltsurance C ontac ts
These contracts axe casualty and Foperty insumnce contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company's customers against the risk of causing harm to third
parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both conbactual and non-
contractual events.

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company's customerc for damage suffered to their
properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their
premises could also receive comp€nsation for the loss of eamings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities (business intenuption cover).

Premiums from short duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of contracts
using the 24th method. The portion ofthe premiums writtefl that relate to the unexpired periods of the
policies as at the date of financial position are accounted for as Unearned Premiums and presented in the
liability section of the statements of financial position. The related reinsurance premiums ceded that
pertained to the unexpired periods as at the date of financial position are accounted for as Ceded
Reinsurance Premiums shown as part of assets in the statements of financial position. The net changes

in these accounts between financial position dates are either charged or credited to income.

Commission income eamed from short duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of contracts using the 24th method except for marine cargo where the defened reinsurance
commissions for the last two months ofthe year are considered earned the following year. The portion of
the commissions that relates to the unexpired periods ofthe policies at the reporting date is accounted for
as deferred reinsurance commissions and lodged into commissions payable and presented in the
liabilities section of the statement of financial position.
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Interest income is recognized as the intercst accrues using the effeotive interest method,

Other income includes gain on sale of stocks and property and investment income. Gain on sale is
recognized when sold. Recovery from impairment losses is rccognized when collected.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Revenues ftom
dividends received and those from other sources are recognized when declared and eamed regardless of
when received.

Foreign currencies denominated monetary transactions are hanslated into the functional cunency using
the prevailing exchange rates at financial position dates. Exchange gains or losses arising from foreign
cuffency transactions are credited or charged directly to operations.

Exoense Recoqnition
Expenses are recognized in the statements of profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefit
related to a decrease in asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
Expenses are recognized in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

. on the basis of a direct association between the costs irlcufied and the eaming of specific items
income;

. on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedues when economic benefits are expected to
arise over several accounting periods and the association can only be broadly or indirectly determined;
or

o immediately when expenditure produces no futurc economia benefits or when, and to the extent that,
future economic benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statements of
financial position as an asset.

Berelits qnd Clains
Gross benefits and claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, which are based on the
loss adjuster estimates. It further includes intemal and extemal claims handling costs that arc directly
related to the processing and settlement of claims.

Insurance claims are recorded on the basis ofnotification rcoeived.

Ahe t Undena/ rit ing Expe ns es

Other underw ting expense pertains to the costs incuned by the Company prior to the issuance of
policies to its policyholders. These costs include expenses for technical inspections, actuarial reviews

and other work that is necessary to determine whether or not to accept the risks to be " tten. These costs

arc recognized as expense as they are incuned.

General Expenses

General expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as they are incurred,

Comprehensive Income
The Company uses single statement of comprehensive income, in \ryhich it Fesents all items of income

and expense recognized in the period.

Related Party Relationships and Transactions
Related party retationship exists when (a) a person or a close member ofthat person's family has control

or joint control, has significant influence or is a member of the key management personnel of the

reporting entity or a parent of the reporting sntity. (b) An entity is rclated to the Company if, the entity
and the Company are members ofthe same goup, one entity is an associate orjoint venture of the other

entity, both entities are joint ventures ofthe same third paty, one entity is ajoint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate ofthe third party, an entity is a post-employment benefit plan for tho

ben€fit of employees of the Company, the entity is controlled or joint controlled by a person who has

control or joint contlol over the Company and a person as identified in (a) above has significant
influence over the entity is a member ofthe key management personnel ofthe entity or ofa parent ofthe
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entity. In considering each possible relatcd party relationship, attention is dirccted to the substance ofthe
relationships, and not merely to the legal form.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whetler a price is charged.

Leases

Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset aro
classified as operating leases.

The Company as Lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases arc charged to plofit or loss on another systematic basis, \rhich is
more representative ofthe time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which
they arc incuned.

b. Short-term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave, bonuses, social security contribution, philhealth
contribution, pag-ibig conhibution and non-monetaxy benefits are rccognized as employee benefit expense

and accrued when the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Company.

c. Proft-sharing and borus plarc
The Company rccognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the company's shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Company recognizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past praotice that has created a constructive obligation.

Income taxes
The tax €xpense for the period comprises cunent and defened t x.

C rrenl taxes
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis ofthe tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date where the company operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. lt establishes provisions where appropdate on the basis ofamounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Delerred income taxes
Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their canying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise fiom the initial recognition ofgoodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time ofthe transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Emplovee Benefits
a. Retirement Cost

The Company's retirement plao is non-contributory and of the defined benefit type which provides a
retirement benefit equal to One-half month's salary for every year of credited service in accordance
\xith the Retir€ment Pay law (Republic Act No. 7641). Benefits are paid in lump sum upon retirement
or separation in accordance with the tems of the plan. A The retirement cost is detemined by
applying the Accrued Benefit Actuarial Cost Method taking into account the factors of investment,
mortality, disability and salary projection mte. The fund is administered by a duly appointed fund
trustee.
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Defened income tax assets are recognized only to the extcnt that it is probable that future taxable prcfit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Defened tax relating to items recognized outside profit and loss is recognized in conelation to the
underlying transaction both in ocl or directly in equity and not in the company's statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against curent tax liabilities and when the deferred incoms taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Currefit and defeted tqx fot the year
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the curent and dofered
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Value-added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net ofthe amount ofVAT, except:

. where the VAT incured on a purchase of assets or services is not rccovemble from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost ofacquisition ofthe asset or
as part ofthe expense item applicable; and

o receivables and payables that arc stated with the amount ofVAT included.

Eaminss oer Share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared.

Diluted eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted averaga
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential odinary sharos
into ordinary shares.

Book Value oer Share

Book value per share is calculated by dividing stockholders equity by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic
resolllces and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be
uncertain. A present obligation arises from the plesence of a legal or constructive commitment that has

resulted tom past events.

Provisions are measurcd at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on

the most reliable evidence available at the financial position date, including the risks and uncertainties

associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be received in the course of
settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain as a separate asset, not exceeding

the amount of the related provision. Wherc there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a

whole. ln addition, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values, where time value of
money is material.

Provisions are reviewed at each financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate

ln those cases where the possible outflow of economic resouroe as a result of prcsent obligations is

considered probable or rcmote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability
is recognized in the financial statements.
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Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are
considercd contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements.

Contingencies
Contirgent liabilities represent possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrenog or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe
Company. They arc not recognized in the financial statoments but are disclosed unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic b€nefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Subsequent Events
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's position at financial
position date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in tlte notes to financial statements when matedal.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

ln the application ofthe Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions arc
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual rcsults may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisiom to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods ifthe revision afTects both current and future
periods.

Fair yalue meqsurement ofJinancial iwtruments
When the fair values of financial assets afld financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quot€d prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observabls
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a de$ee ofjudgment is required in establishing
fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value offinancial instruments.

De termi ning Func I io nal Currency
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Company, the
functional currency ofthe Company has been determined to be the Philippine peso. The Philippine peso

is the culrency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. It is the cunelcy
that mainly influences the revenues and expenses ofthe Company.
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Judgments
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made judgments, apart
from those involving estimations that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements:

Revenue Recognilion
The Company's revenue recognition policies require use of ostimates and assumptions that may affect
the reported amounts ofrevenue and rec€ivables.
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The L rinale Liability Arisinglrom Claims made urder Insurance Contracls
The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the

Company's most critical accounting estimate. There are several souces of uncertainty that oeed to be

considered in the estimate ofthe liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims.

Estimates have to be made for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reporting date. It can

take significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with cetainty. The
primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified is that of using past claims
settlement trends to predict future claims settlement tends. At cach end of the reporting period, prior
year claims estimated are assessed for adequacy and changes made are charged to provision. Claims are

not discounted for the time value of money.

The assumption underlying the estimation of the claims provision is that a Company's past claims
development experience can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claim
oosts. Historical claims development is analyzed by accident years but can also be further analyzed by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually addrcssed by being reseNed at the
face value of loss adjuster's estimates, Assumptions used are those impliait in the historical claims
development data on which the projections are based.

Estimqted Allowance lor Inpairment Losses on Receivables
The Company ovaluates the possibility of losses that may arise out of the ron-collection of receivables
based on a certain percentage of the outstanding balance of receivable and on an evaluation of the
current status of the account. However, as of December 31, 2015, no allowance for impaiment losses
was provided for, as the accounts were deemsd fully collectible.

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ ifthe Company made different
judgments or utilized different estimates. An increase in the allowance for impairment losses on
receivables would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

Estimated Uselul Lives of Property and Equipuent
The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives ofproperty and equipment based on the period
over which the assets arc expected to be available for use and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence. lt is possible
that future results ofoperations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about
by changes in the factors mentioned.

Finarcial Assels and Liabilities
The Company carries ceriain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgment. While significalt oomponents of fair value measurement were
determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign exchange ntes, intercst rate), tle amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized different yalue methodology. Any changes in
fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect directly the statements of other
comprehensive income and statements of changes in equity. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
are disclosed in details in Note 27.

Estimates
The key assumptions conceming the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial

positio; date ttat have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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Detemination ol Fair Values of Financial Assels

Fair value deteminations for financial assets are based genemlly oll listed market prices or broker or

dealer price quotations. Ifprices are not readily determinable or ifliquidating the positions is reasonably

expected to affect the market prices, fair Yalue is based on their intemal valuation models or

management's estimate of amounts that could be realized under curent market conditions, assuming an

orderly liquidation over a reasonable period of time. The use of assumptions could produce materially

different estimates of fair value.
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Asset lupairment
The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstanoes indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers
important which could trigger an impairment review include the following;

. significant underperformance relative to the expected histo cal or projected future operating results;

. significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall busiless;
and

. signiflcant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value |ess costs to sell, The fair value
less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length hansaction while
value in use is the present value ofestimated future cash flo\rys expected to arise from the continuing use

of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for
individual assets or, if it is not possibl€, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use of the assets, the Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that oan

matedally affect the financial statements.

No indications ofimpairment were noted on property and equipment as ofDecember 31, 20t5 and 2014.

Retire me nt B e nelt O bli goti on
The cost ofthe defined benefit pension plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present

value ofthe pension obligation are determined usilg actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
det€rmination ofthe discount nte, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each r€porting date,

The valuation results are based on the employee data as ofvaluation dates as provided by the Company.
The average discount rate was based on bootstrupped PDEX PDST-R2 rates at various tenors as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014. Assumed discount rate is used in the measurement ofthe present value of
the obligation, service and interest cost.

Deferred lncome Tax Assets
The Company reviews the canying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each financial position date

and reduces defe[ed income tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
plofit will be available to allow all or paxt of the defened income tax assets to be utilized. However,
there is no assurance that the Company will generate suflicient taxable proflt to allow all or part of the
defered income tax assets to be utilized.

201s 2014

Cash in barks
Short-term finarcial assets

Cash on hand

P 12,224,544
s4,046,804
2,927,138

P 24,545,149
14,544,022
2,486,435

P 129,198,526 P 41,575,606

Cash in banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term financial
assets are done for varying periods between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:
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rcquirements of the company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. Interest
income for the December 31, 2015 and 2Ol4 amounted to P699,191 arLd p245,381, respectively. (See
Note 23)

5. REINSURANCE

Premiums Dae From Ceding Companies
This account represents balances due to the Company as a result of trcaty and facultative acaeptances
from ceding companies. The Company's premiums due from ceding companies amounts to P16,395,472
andPl7,231,421 for the years 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Reinsurance Recorerable on Losses

This account represents the amount recoverable from reinsurers under treaty and facultative agreements
as their sharc in paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses net of salvage recoveries. The
Company's reinsumflce recov€rable on losses amounts to P44,346,327 and P82,E39,253 for the years

2015 and 2014, respectively.

Premiums Reserve Withheld By Ceding Companies
This account pertains to a aertain percentage of the total rcinsurance premiums due within one year from
date ofrctention being held by ceding companies. The Company's premium reserve withheld by ceding
companies amounts to P12,631,592 and P11,120,255 for the years 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Salvage Recowrable
This account represents the estimated recov€ries the Company may have from losses on policies issued.

The Company's salvage recoverable amounts to P863,982 and P977,355 for the years 2015 and 2014,

respectively.

Receitables
This represents receivable from non-insurance transactions. The Company's receivables amounts to
P6,879,561 urdP2,030,222 fot the years 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company utilizes reinsurance agreements to minimize its exposure to large losses in all aspects of
its insurance business. Reinsurance permits recoyery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although, it
does not discharge lhe primary liability ofthe Company as dircct insurer ofthe risk reinsured.

Prcmi ms Receirahle
This reprosents uncollected premiums on direct business including those by general agents and insuranoe
brokers including taxes and other charges, provided these are properly segegated and the corresponding
liabilities are set up. The Company's premiums receivable amounts to P35,257,742 at\dP29,469,079 for
the years 2015 and 2014, respectively-

Comuission Receivable
This account repr€sents uncollected commissions on treaty and facultative agreements. The Company's
commissions receivable amounts to P11,831,620 and P11,193,584 for the years 2015 ard 2014,
respectvely.
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6. OTHERCURRENTASSETS

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Prepaid invesfinent expenses

Documentary stamps tax receivable
Accrued investment income
Notes receivable
Fire service tax receivable

P 7,280,416
3,226,022
2,604,503
1,176,145

P 8,787,591

3,194,908
2,877,220

376,170
94

7. HELD.TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Treasury bonds
Treasury bills

P 102,013,970
42,794,000

P 159,850,720

13,500,000
Treasurynotes 27,103,000 27,103,000

P t71,900970 P 200,453,720

Held-to-maturity financial assets of the Company carry effective interest rates as follows:

2015 2014

lrss than one year
More than year

8.98-9.10 4.30 - 8.13

6.38-8.13 6.38 - 9.10

The movement in held-to-maturity financial assets is summarized as follows:

20ls 2014

At January I
Additions

P 200,453,720 P 226,061,720
892,000

Maturities (28,552,750) (26,500,000)

At December 3l P 171,900,970 P 200,453,720

At each reporting date, the Company performs evaluations of the impairment of held-to-maturity
financial assets. The Management determines whether it intends to sell or if it is more likely than not that
it will be required to sell impaired financial assets. The Management considers current and forecasted
liquidity requirement, regulatory and capital requirements and securities portfolio management. For all
impaired HTM financial assets for which there was no intent or expected requirement to sell, the
evaluation considers all available evidence to assess whether it is likely the amortized cost value will be

recovered.
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8. AVAILABLE.FOR.SALEFINANCIALASSETS

Available-for-sale investments which consist of listed,/unlisted equity shares are measved, atfair uqrhet
yalue at],d at cost tespectively are as follows:

a) Available-for-sale-investments which consist of listed equity shares which are measued at fair
market value are as follows:

No. of

Shares at Cost

D€fen€d2015

Equity sllares

Ayala Corporation- Prefened B

Glob€ Pr€fened Shares

National Reinsurarce Corporation

Paper Industdal Corporatioa

Philippine l,ong Distance snd

Telecommunication Company

PLDT Series Preferr€d

Bank ofthe Philippine lslands

Meralco

80,000

40p00

7,999p00

781

P 4r,840,000

20,880,000

7,S19,060

P 40,000,000

20,000,000

13,684,987

3,820

P 9,200

4300

(30,830)

0e)

P 1,840,000

880,000

(6,165,92',t)

\ (3,820)

114

6,670

800,168

66.500

67,n94,081

2r,280,000

66,700

19,832,142

19,904,242

234,840

(66,700)

41,261,945

1,315,758

234,840 1,174

(333)

236,3r0

6,878

P r.a.r.7.oa7 P l.ar8sl_93:l!29___I_22!J!g_

2014
No. of

Shares Market Vahe at Cost

Unreali.zed

sain (loss)

D6fened

Equitr sharcs

Ayala Coaoraiion- Prefened B

Globe Prefened Shar.s

Natioml Reinsurance Corporation

Paper Industrial CoQorarion

Philippine tnng Distanc€ and

Telecommunication Conp8ny

PLDT Series Preferrcd

Bank ofthe Philippine lslrnds

Petson Perpelual Preferred

Se Miguet Corporation-

Preferred Series A

San Misuel Purefoods PrefeE€d

80,000

40,000

?,999,000

187

P 40,080,000

20,080,000

7,199,100

P 40,000,000

20,000,000

13.684,987

3,820

P 80,000

80,000

(6,485,887)

(3,820)

P 400

400

(32,429)

(19)

4

6,610

800,168

83,060

74,536,535

8,455,508

331,284

(66,?00)

54,704,392

34,288

66,?00

19.832,\43

8,42t,220

ls51
(3r4)

213,522

171

41r,800

8,000

31,132,080

8,072,000

30,885,000

8,024,000

247,080

48,000

1,235

240

P 18r,886,50? P t40

331,284

30
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b) Available-for-sale-investments which consist of proprietary share and unquoted equity shares
measur€d at cost,

2015 2014

Proprietqry shares
Wack-wack Golf Club
Sta. Elena Club
Makati Sports Club

Ufiquoted equity shares
Acoje Mining
Nuclear Insurance Pool, Inc.
Phil. Machinery Mgmnt. Services
PDCP

P 1s,000,000
r,750,000

35,000

P 15,000,000
1,750,000

35,000

28,425
10,000
20,000

5,447

Th€ movement in this account is summadzed as follows;

201,5 2014

At January I
Additions
Disposition
Fair value changes

P 206,735379
19,904:r,42

(47,330,,20)
(3,6764141

P t76,44',7,081

28,515,648

t,'7't2,650
P t75,632987 P 206;r35.3',19

In evaluatilg impairment of available.for-sale financial assets they consider a number of factors
including, but not limited to, the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost,
the financial condition and near term prospects ofthe issuer, and management's ability and intent to hold
the secudties until fair value recovers. Based on the resul8 ofthe evaluation, as of December 31,2015
and 2014 unrealized losses on some AFS are temporary.

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movemerts in the property and equipment account in 2015 follow:

Btrilding

3,130,0?4 P

123,965

5,r5OJ4' P
7,343.114

7,@6,6t1 P

223,711

412,964

81,844

P2?,891,587
2J12,101

16,5I,5?9 P

16,511,5?9 3,254,039 1,493524 2J10,334 494,8t2 30,664.288

r5,l4lJ9l

40929

2,626,128

1r1,649

2,192,4U

1.093.?65

1,395,429

493.479

1ltJ40 72,666,J92

88.853 1.845,0?5

16)42.770 2,143,111 3.486.169 1.889,208 200,093 24.501,467

329i59 P 61016? P 4,007J55 P t,02tJ2n P 294,n4 P6,162,821

3l

P 16,?8s,000 P 16,8
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Movements in the property and equipment account in 2014 follow:

B!ilding
Mrchin! Improv.m.nlr

16,102,289 P

409,290

(2,165,34D

t,l49,al

2,50?,66r P

178.956

240,0@

11L968

P 21,416,151
(2,165,341)

2,t80.t75

2,860,154 P

269.-120

t6,'ll.5?9 3,t30.074 5,150,349 2,686,617 412,963 21,49\587

2,501,752

I18,176

3,841,180

116,565

907,094

,t88,23t 61,2-44

23,219,E06

t,6l],927

l4 128 ll

370.283 503 P 151,945 P 1,29t,245 P r01,728 P 5.225,1r5

The total cost of fully depreciated property and equipment which are still in use in the operations
amounted to P7,071 ,835 and,P4,664,'123 as of December 3 I , 20 I 5 and 2014, resp€ctively.

10. OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Defen€d charges-MclT
Real estate ac4uired
Verification fi-rnd

Taxes flmd
Deposits

P 12@302
r249280

959,181
67r,170
289,941

P 884,409
279,9't 4

134,3',72

206,060
243,800

frud t1
P 7

t'| 902
P t,166,5!

This account compdses of the total amount of losses and claims due and payable to policyholders and

other claimants. Also included in this account are losses and claims due and payable to reinsurers under

treaty and facultative agrcements.

The Company's claims payable amounts to P57,009,940 and P73,238,687 for the years 2015 and 2014,

respectivelY,

Chimspay.ble
rnd unermed R€insu rers' rhare

Drcmiuns oflirbilitie,

Claims payable Reinsurers'

share of
liabililiesNrl2015 Net20l4

claims payable repo&d

ond loss adjustment

P 57,009,940 P 29;274,976 P 21,7U,9A P r,23&687 P 49,t61.9t0 P 24.070.711

32

15,9t9,780

22t,5-1t

1I. CLAIMS PAYABLES
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12. PREMIUM DUE TO REINSURERS

This represents all the reinsurance premium payable by the company to all its treaty and facultative
reinsurers.

Commission payable pertains to amount payable to agents, brokem and general agents for business
underwitten by them or to ceding companies upon business accepted from them.

The Company's commission payable amounts to P29,849,845 and P28,208,670 for the years 2015 and
2014, respectively.

14. Rf,SERVE FOR UNEARNED PREMIUM

The Company adopts the 24th method of recognizing premiums revenue and accounting for the portion
of premiums rvritten relating to the unexpired periods of the policies and unearned premiums.

A comparison of reserve for unearned premiums computed using this method and the statutory rate

follows:

2015 2014

Resorve using 24th method
Reserve using statutory rate 40Yo

P 60p08888
56.435.869

P 51,565,7 41

4',1,662,260

P 3573.119 P 3,903,487

15. PREMIUM RESERVE WITHHELD FOR REINSURERS

lncluded in this amount is the portion of the reinsurance premiums ceded to insurers, which was

withheld by the Company in accordance with heaty agreement and / or laws, rules and rcgulations.

The Company's premiums reserve withheld for reinsurers amounts to P2,5'17,220 for both years 2015

and 2014.

16. PAYABLES

Obligations of the Company arising from non-insurance and non-reinsuranoe transactions are lodged in
this account.

The Company's payables amounts to P3,019,312 ad Y2,927,867 for the years 2015 and 2014,

respectivelY.

33

The Company's premiums due to reinsurers amou[ts to P54,376,807 and P58,635,303 for the years 2015
and 2014, respectively.

13. COMMISSION PAYABLE
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17. OTHER LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

CrediLs to client
Bonus payable

Documentary stamps tax payable

Taxes payable
Deposits
Uneamed bond discount
SSS, Pag-ibig and Philhealth payables

Dividends payable
Service fees payable

Prcvident fi.rnd payable

Others

P 4,1s6,s87
2,686,79s
2,568,733

2,383889
1,500,s78

144,978
228,724
25,169
4,439

P 2,281,849

2,841,830
2,r17,986
2,730,956

901,476
3'15,48'1

137,019

55,523
50,71I
4,350
8,3568,356

P 13,908,347 P I1,505,543

18. RETIRf,MENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Company has a retirement plan covering all its qualified employees. The plan is non-cont butory
and the retirement cost is determined by applying the Accrued Benefit Actuarial Cost Method taking into
account the factors of investrnent, mortality, disability and salary projection rate. The fund is
administered by a duly appointed fund tustee.

The above mentioned rctirements plan falls undff the defined benefit plan that defines an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years ofservice and compensation.

Movement in the present value ofdefined benefit obligation is summarized as follows:

2015 2014

Present value ofobligation, January I
Curent service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid

P 13590,177
883,419
616,994

(2,212,695)

P 12,24'1,|8
84't,156
587,862

Actuarial loss

Paesent

The movement in pension assets is summarized as follows:

I
PI 169 PI 111

2015 20r4

Fair value ofpension assets, January I
Expected retum on pension assets

Benelits paid

Actuarial eain (loss)

P 19377,939
829,530

(2,212$9s)
(2,409,068)

P 19,641,254
942;780

0,206,095)
Fair value of pension assets, December 3l P 15,585,706 P t9,377,939

34
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Asset rccognized in the statements offinancial position is as follows:

2015 2014

Present value of obligation
Fair value ofpension assets

P 11,568,769
15,585,706

P 13,590,177
19,37?,939

Unfunded obligation
Asset ceiling

(4,016,937)
571,160

(s,787,762)
823,895

R9!i.9fn9l{ ben9fit glljgation (asset) P (3,445,171) P (4,963,867)

Expenses recognized in the statements ofprofit or loss:

Current service cost
Net interest cost

P 883,419
(175,131)

P 847,156
(354,918)

Retbement expense P 708,288 P 492,238

Expenses recognized in the statements ofother comprehensive income are as follow:

Achraxial gain (loss) on obligation
Remeasurement gair(loss)- plan asset

Remeasurement gair(loss) - changes in the
effect of asset ceil

The cumulative amount ofactuarial gains and (losses) charged to remeasurement gains are as follow;

201s 2014

P (1,309,126)
2,409p68

teco

Remeasuement gain, beginning P 3,814,107 P 5,152,138
Actuarial loss the 938 031

*The amounts shown in the statements of changes in equity were net of income tax effect on actuarial
loss. Total accumulated actuarial losses on employees' benefit obligation amounted to p2,103,014 and
P2,669,875 in 2015 at:.d 2014, rcspectively.

Movement in net asset is summarized below:

2015 2014

Beginning net asset

ExpeDs€ recognized, profit or loss

Remeasurement loss

P (4,963,86?)

708,288

809,802

P (7,394,136)

492,238

1,938,031
Closing net asset P (3A4s,1171 P (4,963,861)

The principal assumptions used in determining pensions for the Company are as follow;

2015 20t4
Discount mte
Salary increase rate

5.070/o

6.00yo
4.54%
6.00o/o

2015 2014

2015 2014

P (91,959)
t,206,095

llod

The expected retum on pension assets was determined by considering the expected retums available on
the assets underlying the current investrnent policy. Expe.cted yields on fixed interest investments are
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based on gross redemption yields as of the financial position date. Expected returns on equity
investments reflect long-term real rates ofreturn experienced in the respective markets.

Assumptions regarding future mortality and disability experience are based on published statistic
generally used for local actuarial valuation purposes.

Actual return on plan assets:

2015 2014

Expectedretumonplanassets P829,530 P942,780
Actuarial gain (loss) (2,409,068) (1,206,095)
Act 

"t 
r"t 

"r "r 
p"*t"" 

^r.t.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on d9!n9{ bengfr! pbllgatig4

2015 2014

assumption assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate

Salary growth rate

3.90Yo

3.20Vo

3.400h
2.80Yo

8.60%
7.90%

0.80%

1.30o/o

Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by remeasuring the

defined benefit obligation at the financial position date after f,rrst adjusting one of the current
assumptions according to the applicable sensitivity increment or decrement (based on changes in the
relevant assumption that were reasonably possible at the valuation date) while all the other assumptions

remained unchanged. The corresponding change in the defined benefit obligation was expressed as a

percentage change from the base defined benefit obligation.

It should also be noted that the changes assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date are open

to subjectivity, and do not consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those assumed

may be deemed to be more reasonable.

Retirement trust fund for December 31, 2015 is comprised of the following:

2015

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Unit lnvestment Trust Funds

Mutual Funds

45.llo/o

0.37Yo

29.67%
2E.38o/o

0.00%

4.53o/o

7,030,712

57,667

4,624,279

4,423,224

(550,175)

P

Other (Market Gains/Losses, Accrued Receivables, etc.)

100% P 15,585,706
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2014

Cash and cash equivaleirts

Equity instuments
Debt inshuments

Unit Investment Trust Funds

Mutual Funds

Other (Ma*et Gainvlosses, Accrued Receivables, etc.)

0.0V/o P

0.01o/o

4l.O8o/o

40.840/0
'7.740/o

10.33%

153

t,'786

7,960,457

7,913,950

1,499,852

2,001,741

100% P 19,37'7,939

The rctirement trust fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-market
valuation. While no significant changes in asset allocation are expected in the next financial year, the
plan trustee can make changes any time.

The Company has no specific matching strategy between the rctirement fund assets and the dsfined
ben€fit liabilities under the plan.

The Company expects not to contribute to the plan in 2015.

The \reighted average duration ofthe defined benefit obligation is as follow:

Years

6.40

The Company's expected future benefits payments are as follow

Amount

P s,036,012

The distribution ofeligible members as of December 31,2015 is as follows;

Number oflives covered

Average age in years

Average years ofpast service

I1.00
50.70

13.00

39.00
43.20

13.30

Unusual or Significant RisLs to which the Retireme t Plan Exposes the Company
There are no unusual or significant dsks to which the plan exposes the Company. However, in the event
a benefit claim arises under the rctirement plan and the fund is not sufficient to pay the benefit, the
unfunded portion ofthe claim shall immediately be due and payable from the Company to the fund.

Retirement trust fund for Dec.ember 31, 2014 is comprised ofthe following:

Financial year

2015

Financial year

2016

201'7
2018
2019
2020

2021-202s

4,253,169
535,957

2,150,063

I,877 ,557

Male Female Combined
28.00
40.20

13.40
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P lan Atfie ndments, Curtailment, or Settlements
There was no plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement recognized for the financial year ended
December 31, 2015.

19. SHARE CAPITAL

This account consists of:

20r5 2014

2,500,000 shares 2,500,000 shares

P 250,000,000 P 250,000,000

The Company has one hundred twonty three (123) shareholders each owning 100 or more shares of the
Company's share capital as at financial position date.

Treasury Stocks
The Company's future eamings are restricted from the payment of dividends to the extent of P76,886
representing treasury shares for 2015 and 2014.

20. RETAINED EARNINGS

2015 2014

At I January

Profit for the year

P 10E,509,641

1s,287,725

91,351,822

17,157,819

P

At December 31 PI 797 P 108 509

2I. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one of the paties has the ability, directly or indirsctly, to contrcl
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other pa y in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subjected to common control or common

significant influence. Related panies may be individuals or corporate entities.

Details ofkey management compensation and directom' remuneration follow:

2015 2014

Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term benefits

Directors' renumeEtion

P 3,357,946

r,306,6ss

3,250,853

1,776,054

P

P 4,664,600 P 5,026,907

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no sale and purchase of insurance and investment
contBcts, receivables, payables and loans to key management pemonnel.

As of Dec€mber 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no services rendered and non-interest / interest bearing
advances to / from associatas and other related parties.

38

Par value - Pl00 per share
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22. UNDERWRITING INCOME AND EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2015 2At4

UNDERWRITING INCOME
Direot premiums-net

Add: Premiums assumed

P 141J33,715 P 14,862,442

Gross premiums

Less: Premiums ceded
112j32,59E
30,224,427

142,391,867

23.305.011

Net premiums retained

Less: Premiums reserve for the year
142,108,17r
60,008,988

119,086,856

51,565,741

Gross premium on net rctained

Add: Premiums released from reserve

82,099,183

51,565,747

67,52t,t09
42.98t,812

Premiums eamed

Commissions eamed

133,664,930

1,102,277

t10,502,921

6,203,282

2015 20t4

UNDERWRITING trXPf,NStrS
Agents' commission and expenses

Claims, losses paid and adjustment expenses

Insurano€ €xponse

P 38,387Fs4
38,004f8s
25,08r167

P 33,948,t32
26,63s,ss9

22,5s3,262

Total under$riting expenses P 101,473106 P 83,136,953

NET I]NDERWRITING INCOMtr P 39,293,40r P $,569,250

23. INVESTMENT INCOME

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Income fiom invesknents in secudties

Income from savhgs and time deposits

P 10,644,976

699,191

P 11,970,105

245,381

24. OTHER DIRECT COSTS AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Other dircct costs consist ot
2015 20t4

Salaries and wages

Officers' and employees benefits
Taxes and licenses

Professional fe.es

Printing, stationery and supplies
Commmication and postage

Repairs and maintenance

P 9,900,076
1,697,031
1273,198
1,056,631

735,8s0
547,510
305,325

P 9,206,186
2,525,',t41

845,620
868,846
429,903
544,000
27 4,018

P 14,694,914P 15,515,621
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Total unde.w.tttng .oo.e P 140

P ll3,44w P n21s,486
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General administrative expenses consist of:

20ts 2014
Salaries and wages
Depreciation and amortization CNote 9)
Professional fees
Rental expenses
Light ard water
Transportation and havel
Reprosentation and entertainrnent
Officers' and employees benefits
Communication and postage

Directors' fees and allowances
P nting, stationery and supplies
Repairs and mainteDance
Insurance
Intgrest
Donations and conhibutions
Miscellaneous exp€nses

P 4,242,889
r,835.075
1,056,632
r,000,643

928,808
924,098
787,138
721,298
54?,510
478,s00
315,365
130,8s4
81,519
43,322
59,366

12,539,342

P 3,945,165
1,611,927

868,845
902,057

99',1,330

6',12,378

247,58s
1,082,460

544,001
484,000
t84,244
r'7,436
9t,614
63,589
21,500

8,088.564

P 25,698,959 P 19,923,295

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, miscellaneous expenses pertain to the following:

2015 2014

Agency expenses P 6,090,473 P 5,527,202
Service fee 5,708,583 1,694,894
Association and pool dues 667,585 785,367
Baok service charges 63,772 57,175

25. BENEFIT FROM INCOME TAX

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Cunent
Corpomte income tax

Deferred
P (r,20s,530) P (939,597)

|4

The reconciliation between the corpomte income tax and income tax after applying the statutory tax rate

on income tax follows:

2015 2014

1

P

Statutory income tnx
Income tax effect orl:

Tax exempt income
Income subject to lourer tax rates

lncome not subject to t x
Temporary differenc€s

P 4,567,55r P 4,831,1l l

(3,r93,493)
(2W,757)

(2,426,0771

s6,246

(3,s91,031)
(73,614)

(2,093,287)
(12;776\

P (939,597)P (1r0s530)
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Under Republic Act No. 9337 - Income tax amendments, the corporcte income tax rate applicable from
January I to October 31, 2005 of 32o/o in 2005 was increased to 35% effective November l, 2005,
de{reasing to 30% effective on January 1, 2009. Because of the change in the corporate income tax
rate, the allowable deduction for interest expense in Section 34(BX1) is reduced by 42% (from 38%) of
interest income subject to final tax and 33% (from 42yo) upon the effectivity of the 30% corporate tax
mte on January 1,2009.

The Company's deferred tax asset (liability) consists of:

2015 20t4

Def€rred tax assets;
Net operating loss carry over (NOLCO)

Deferred tax liabilityt
Nct unrcali.ed gain on AFS
Unrealired foreign exchange gain
Remeas urarEnt gain

P 7,523J18 P 7,495,034

Q26;703)
Qt1 372)
(901291)

(244,8r'.3)

(34,2s8)
(1,144,232',)

P 6,177952 P 6,071,701

The movements in the deferred income tax account are summarized as follow

NOLCO
Unrealized

gain or loss on

AIS

Unrealized
gain or loss

on FOREX

Remeasuremen

t gain
Total

At January 1,2014

Charye to profit or loss
Charged to other

comprehensive income

P 6,555,437 P (235,980)
939,597

(8,863)

( 4,506) P (r;125,641) P

80,248

4,4',19,310

1,019,845

581,409 5'72,546

atD-om6er3i,ml-
Charge to profit or loss

Charged to other
comprehensive income

P '1,495,034

28,284
(244,843) (34,258)

(183,1l4)
(1,144,232) P 6,071,701

- (154,830)

242,941 261,08118,140

At December 31.2015 P 7,523J18 P (226,703t P (2r7,372t P (901.29r) P 6,177,9s2

The details ofNet Opemting Loss Canied Over (NOLCO) and its conesponding defened tax asset 8s of
2015 and 2014 arc as follows:

D€ferred
tax asset NOLCO

Deferred

tax assetYear of
Incurrence

Year of
Expiration 2015 2014

2012

2013

20t4
2015

3,924,154 P
t7,921,303
3,131,992

d,018,433

I,177,246
s,378,191

939,597

1,205,530

20l s

2016
2017

2018

P P 3,924,154 P

11,921,303

3,13t,992

I,111,246

5,378,191

939,597

Expircd NOLCO

29,001,882
(3,924,154)

8,700,564
(r,r77 2461

24,983,449 1,495,034

Remaining NOLCO/
Defered tax asset 128 P 7 ,318 P 983,449 P 1

4l

P 495 034

NOLCO
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26. EARNINGS PER SHARE AND BOOK VALUE PER SHARE

The computation ofbasic/diluted eamings per share is computed as follows:

2015 2014

Net Fofrt
Divided by oustanding shares

P 15,287,725
2,500,000

P 17,157,819

2,500,000
P 6.12 P 6.86

Therc were no potential dilutive shares in 2015 and 2014.

The computation of book value per share is computed as follows:

Equity
Divided by oustanding shares

P 420,889,014
2,s00,000

P 409,826,424
2,500,000

P 168.36 P 163.93

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMf,NT AND OBJTCTIVES

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. This section summadzes these risks and the
way the Company manages them,

Ins rance Risk
The risk under any one insurance contlact is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contact, this risk is
random and thercfore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and

provisioning, the principal fisk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual

claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur

because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insumnce events are

random and the actual number and amount of claims and b€nefits will vary from year to year from the

level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative

variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to
be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance

underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insuance risks accepted and within each of these

categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected

outcome,

Factors that ag$avate insurance dsk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of
risk, geographiaal Iocation and type ofindushy covered.

Proryrty Insutance Contracts Risk
For property insurance contracts, climatic changes give rise to more frequent and sevgre extreme

weather events and their consequences. For certain contracts, the Company has also limited the number

of claims that can be paid in any policy year or inhoduced a maximum amount payable for claims in any

policy year.

The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles

and reject fraudulent claims. These contracts are underwritt€n by reference to the commercial

42

2015 2014



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

replacement value of the properties and contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included
to cap the amount payable on occurrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of
replacement or indemnity for aontents and time taken to restarl operations for business interruption are
the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies.

C asualty I nsur ance Ris k
Claims on casualty contracts are payable on a claims-occunence basis. The Company is liable for all
insured evenh that occured during the term ofthe contract, even ifthe loss is discovered after the end of
the contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and a larger element
of the claims provision relates to incunsd but not rcported claims (IBNR). There are several variables
that affect the amount and timing of cash flo\rr's from these contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent
risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures they adopted.

Reinsurance Risk
In the normal course ofbusiness, the Company limits the amount ofloss on any one policy by reinsuring
certain levels of risk with other insuers. In addition, the Company accepts reinsurance from other
reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded does not discharge the Compafly's liability as the primary insuler. Failure
of reinsure$ to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company; consequently, allowances
are established for amounts deemed uncollectible. In order to minimize losses from reinsurer insolvency,
the Company monitors the concentmtion of oedit risk both geographically and with any one reinsurer.

ln addition, the Company selects reinsuers with high credit ratings. The effect of reinsumnce on
premium income follows:

2015 20t4

credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Company by
failing to honor its obligation to the Company. Credit risks are primarily associated with invested assets

and reinsurance counter parties. The Company mitigates credit risk through detailed credit and
underwriting policies and comprehensive due diligence and credit analyses.
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Direct premium income P 141,733,715 P 114,862,442
Reinsurance assumed 30,598,883 27,529,425
Reinsuance ceded (30124,427) (23,305,01l)

P 142,108,171 P l19,086,856

Financial Risks

The significant risks related to financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(cunency and interest rate). The following sections described how the Company manages sach of the
risks.
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The Company's maximum credit exposure related to financial instruments is summarized in the
following table.

2015 2014

Cash and cash equivalents

Premiums due from ceding companies

Reinsurance recoverable on losses

Premiums receivable

Commissions receivable

Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies

Receivables

Salvage recoverable

Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

(in Thousands)

P 126271 P 39,089
16,395 1',t,231

44,346 82,839

3srs8 29,469

11,832 11,194

12,632 11,120

6,880 2,030

864 977

171,901 200,454

175,633 206,735
P 6O2,Ot2 P 601,138

The Company has assessed the credit quality ofthe following finanoial assets:

. The crcdit dsk for cash in bank is considered negligible, since the counterparties are rcputable entities
with high quality €xternal credit rctings. The credit quality of this financial asset is therefore
considered to b€ high grade. For the determination of qedit risk, cash included in the analysis above
do not include cash on hard amounting to P2,927,137 and P2,486,435 for the year 2015 and,2014,
respectively,

r The Company's premiums and other receivables are actively monitored to avoid significant
concentrations of credit risk.

As ofDecember 31, 2015 and 2014, the aging analysis ofthe Company's receivables is as follows:

Neither Past Due

Nor Impaired Past Due But
Not Impaired

2015

lotslClass A Class B Class C

Cssb atrd crsh €quivrl€ntr
Premiums

Receivable

Due fiom ceding companies

Reserve withheld by
ceding companies

Reimursnce re@v€rablE
otr loss€s

Commisslon rcceivable

Salvage r€coverable
Receivables

Finatrcial assets

Held-to-maturity
Available-for-sale

P 126,271,388

38,728

2t,495,748
116,096

5,852,488

509,541

6,880,659

15,169,835

3s,251,742

16,395,412

1,028,841

863,982

P 126,27t,388

12,631,59212,631,592

6,674,934

35,353

2,123,309

44,310,974

9,077,71030,601

165,899

44J6,327
1t,831,620

863,982

6,879,561

171,900,970

175,632,987

r71,m0,970
t75,632,987
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P 498.8t4,579 P 6.558,530 P 94,145,104 P 1,892,829 P 602,011,64
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Neither Past Due

Nor Impaired
2014

TotalClass A B Class C

Past Due But
Not Impaired

Cash and cash equivalents
Premiums

Receivable

Due from ceding companies

Reserve withheld by
ceding companies

Reinsurance recoverable

on losses

Commision receivable

Salvage recoverable
Receivables

Financial assets

Held-to-maturity
Available-for-sale

P 39,089,171

18,876,692

381,67s

21,141,160
3,724,190

200,4s3,720

206,735,379

3,s12,064
727,528

14,176,s3s

152,99s

22,871

6,193, I 87

16,122,218

11,120,2ss

47,s21,ss&
7,316,399

2,007,351

P 39,089,171

29,469,079

17,231,421

11,120,2ss

82,839,253

I 1,193,s84

977,355

2,030,222

200,453,720

206,73s,379

887,136

977,355

P 490,401,98? P 18,

Credit Quality - In monitoring and controlling credit extended to counterparty, the Company adopts a
comprehensive credit rating system based on financial and non-financial assessments of its borrowers.
Financial factors being considered comprised of the financial standing of the borrower while the non-
financial aspects include but not limited to the assessment of the borrowers nature of business, indushy
background, payment habit and both present and potential business dealings with the Company.

Class A "High Grade" are accounts with strong financial capacity and business performance and with
the lowest default risk.

Class B 'oModerate Grade" refer to accounts of satisfactory financial capability and credit standing but
with some elements of risk where certain measure of control is necessary in order to mitigate risk of
default.

Class C "Low Grade" refer to accounts which are collected on their due dates provided that the

Company made a persistent effort to collect them.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to fund all cash outflow commitments as they
fall due. The Company generally maintains a conservative liquidity position that exceeds all the

liabilities payable on demand. The Company invests in various types of assets with a view of matching

them with its liabilities of various durations. To strengthen its liquidity further, the Company actively
manages and monitors its capital and assets levels, diversification and credit quality of its investments

and cash forecasts and actual amounts against established targets. The Company also maintains liquidity
contingency plans for the management of liquidity in the event of a liquidity crisis.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Companies financial liabilities as of December
31, 2015 and 2014.

Current Non-current
Within

6 months
6to12
months

1to5
2015

Total

3,019.312 P

1,036,213
3,019,312

s7,009,940

s4376,807
60,00E,9E6

P

11,944,123

49,9'73,727

42432,683
60,008,988

2,5'17,220

t9,513,292 t0,216,s53
7,643,047

2,577,220

29,E49,845
7,643,04'l

P44 l5 160 P 1l P 88P 2l 157

Current Non-cuIrent
within

6 months
6to 12

months
1to5
years

2014

Total

Pryrbles
Clxims pryrblc
Premiums

Due to reinsurers

Reserve for uneamed

Reserve withheld
for reinsurers

Commissioo prysbl€
Oth.rs (eJ.chrding lax liabililies)

P 2,921,861 P

31,507,147

2,927,86-l
'73,238,687

58,635,303

51,565,147

P

2,416219 39,315,321

5t,s65,147
58,635,303

2,5',71,220

28,208,670

7.561,438

2,571,220

28,208,6'10

7,561y'3E

7 P 38,186,327 P 90,881,0q! P LZ J)IIL

Exposure to foreign exchange risk results primarily from the movements of the Philippine peso against

the United States (U.S.) Dollar that arises from the Company's cash and cash equivalents and held to
maturity financial assets, which are denominated in U,S, Dollars. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014,

currency exchange rates used to translate U.S. Dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities
amounted to P47.17 and P44.617, respectively.

P95 1
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Pay.blcs
Clrims payable

Pr€millms
Due to reinsureE

Reserve for uneamed

Reserve withheld
for reinsurers

Commission payabl€

Ot\ers (?xcluding tax linbililies)

P

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company's foreign currency risk results primarily from movement of the Philippine Peso (PHP)

against the United States dollar. The Company resolved to mitigate this risk by taking advantage of
market trends. Proper timing is adhered in order to realize a foreign cunency gain.



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPAIYY
NOTES TO FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

The table below summarizes the Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk as of December 3 l, 2015

and 2014. Included in the table are the Company's assets at carrying amounts, categorized by currency.

201s 2014

USD PHP USD PHP

Cash and cash equivalents

Ileld-tq-mCldry !Sygstm94!s

$ 261$24 P

607,459

11,646,105 $

27,103,000

233,696 P

607 Asg

10y'26,810

27,103,000

$ 868,483 P 38,?4r,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar rate,
with all variable held constant, of the Company's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets ) and the Company's equity.

Effect on profit before tax

Effect on equity
$ 868,483 $ 841,155

588,809

$ (868,483) $

(607,938)

(841,155)

(588,809)607

Interest rate risk
The Company's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the Company's held-to-
maturity investments.

The Company's policy is to manage its interest income using fixed rates receivable.

Interest risk to which financial assets are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the fufure cash

flows or fair value of financial assets because of a change in market interest rates. Interest is managed
principally using mixed of fixed and variable rate receivable.

Financial assets exposed to interest rate risk follow:

Variable Fixed Total

As ofDecember 31,2015
Financial assets:

Held-to-maturi8 investrnents P P 171.900.970 P 171,900,970

Variable Fixed Total

As ofDecember 31,2014
Financial assets:

Held-to-maturity invesunents P P 200,4s3,720 P 200,4s3,'720

The term and maturity profile of the interest bearing financial assets of the Company, together with its
corresponding nominal amounts and carrying values, are shown in the following table:

Interest tem fixing Nominal Carrying

Der mnum oriod <lyru l-5 yws > 5 yeils Value

Rate

Amount

As of December 31, 2015

Held-to-maturity Fixed at the

investsnents date of

investment P 171.9008705-24 p 171,900,970 12,280,000 45,276,000 114,344,970
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US $ Depreciates US $ Appreciates

2015 2014 2015 2014
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6*i,c
< I y6 15 years

Caryi,'g

A! of Deccnber 3l, 2014

Held{o-maturity Fixed al rhe

inwstrnmts dat6 of

investnrert 5-24 P 200.453.724 22,552.750 63,5J6,000 114,344,970 P 200,453,720

2015 2014
Effect on irlcomc

statemcnt
Effect on income

Eff€ct on Equity statement Effect on Equity

EquiA Ptice Risk
The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from available-for-sale investments.

The available-for-sale investments are revalued on cach repoting period end based on quoted market
prices. Any resulting fair value gains or losses arising from the rcvaluation of the available-for-sale
investments are recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income. Available-for-sale
investments that do not have a quoted market p ce in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measure are measured at cost less any impairment losses at end ofeach reporting period.

Fair Value Measurement
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to ostimate such value:

Financial Instruments W'hose Carrying Amounl Approximate Fair Value
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, unquoted equity securities, receivable from
customers, payable to customers, and payable to non-customers, which are all subject to normal
trade cradit terms and are short-term in nature, approximate their fair values.

The following table presents the Company's assets that are measured at fair value at December
31, 2015.

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in
active markets

Significant
observable inputs

Significant
unobservable

inputs

({rvel 3)

Total

(-evel 1) (Level 2)
(ln Thousands)

P 158,847,987

Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity securities P 158.847.987 P P
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
otlrer variables held constant, of the Company's income before income lax as of December 31, 2015 and
2014.

Increase in basis points (+100) P 2,017,350 P 1,613,880 P 2,133,050 P 1,706,440
Decrease in basis points Gl00) (2,017,350) (1,613,880) (2,133,050) (1,706,440)

Financial Assets at FVPL
The Company's financial assets at FVPL and quotsd equity securities are carried at their fair
values as at December 31,2015 and 2014- Fair value of financial assets at FVPL is based on the
closing quoted prices of stock investments published by the lnsurance Commission.
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There are no financial instruments caried at fair value under Levels 2 and 3 during the year.

The following table presents the Company's asscts that are measured at fair value at December
31,2014.

Fair value measurement using

(Level I )

Signifioant
unobservable

inputs
Total

(Level 2) (Level3)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity securities P 189,886,s07 P P 189,E86,507

There are no financial instruments caried at fair value under Levels 2 and 3 during the year.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Company's financial statements in a recuring basis,

the Company determines whether tlansfels have occuned between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorization (based on the lowest level ofinput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end ofeach reporting period. There were no transfers that occurred between level 1, level 2
and level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Company's management determiles the policies and procedures for both recurdng and nonrecuning
fair value measurements.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes ofassets and liabilities on
the basis ofthe nature, chamcteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level ofthe fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Categories ol Financial Inslruments

The carrying values and fair values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities per category are as

follows:

2015 2014

Carrying Fair
Value

Carrying Fair

Value

Cash and cash equivalents

Premiums due from ceding companies

Reinsurance recoverable on losses

Premiums receivable

Commission rec€ivable

Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies

Receivables

Other cufient assets

Salvage recov€rable

Available-for-$le investments

(in thou3rod!)
129,t99 P 41,576 P

16,395 1'.1,231

44,346 82,839

35,25E 29,469

rr,$2 11,194

t2,Gt2 lt,l20
6,880 2,030

l4,s0l 15135

E64 9'17

158,84E 189,88?

P 129,199 P

r6i9s
44,346

35,258

11,832

12,632

6,8E0

14,501

864

158,848

4t,576

n,231
E2,E39

29,469

11,194

11,120

2,030

I5,435

977

tE9,E87
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Quoted pric€s in Si$ificatrt
aotive markets observable inputs

(ln Thousrnds)

P P
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20I5 20t4
Carryiog
AmouIt

Fair
Vsllle

Carrying Fair

Liabilities

Claims payable

Prernium due to reinsurers

Commission payable

Reserve for uneamed premiums
Payables

Prernium reserve withheld for reinsurers
Bonuses payable (Se€ Note I 7)
Credits to clients (See Note l7)
Dmumentary stamps payable (See Not€ I 7)
Fire service tax

P 57,010 P
54,317

29,850

60,009

3,019

2,577

2,6E7

4,157

2,569

399

s7,010 P

54,377

29,E50

60,009

3,019

2,511

2,687

4,157

2,s69

399

73.239 P

58,635

2E,209

51,566

2,928

2,571

2,842

2,2E2

2,118

415

'73,239

58,635

28,209

51,s66

2,928
2,517

2,842
2,282

2,1l8
415

Capital Risk Manage me nt
The Company has established the following capital management objectives, policies aod approach to
managing the risks that affect its capital position:

. To maintain the requircd level of stability of the company thereby providing a degree of security to
policyholders.

. To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns on
capital employed meet the requirements ofits capital providers and ofits shareholders.

. To retain the financial fleibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital
markets.

. To align the profile ofassets and liabilities taking account of risks inherent in the business

. To maintain financial strength to satisry the rcquircments of the policyholders, regulatom and
shareholdors.

. To maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives
and maximize shareholders value,

P 216,654 P 216,654 P 224,8t1 P 8ll

The operations of the Company arc also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdictions in
which it operates. Such regulations not only presc be approval and monitoring activities, but also
impose certain restrictive provisions (e.9., capital adequacy) to minimize the dsk of default and
insolvency on the part ofthe insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as they arise.

ln reporting financial stength, capital and solvency are measured using the rules prescribed by the
Insurance Commission of the Philippines.

The statutory net worth of life, nonJife, and reinsurance companies shall include the Company's paid-up
capital, unimpaired surplus, retained eamings, and revaluation increments as may be approved by the
Insurance Commissioner.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company has complied with the 2013 minimum net worth of P250
million.

50

Capitalization Requirenents for Life, Non-LiJe, and Reinsurance Companies (Republic Act No. 10607)
Republic Act No. 10607 known as the Amended Insuranoe Code requircs that no new domestic life or
non-life insurance company shall, in a stock corporation, engage in business in the Philippines unless
possessed of a paid up capital equal to at least One Billion Pesos (P1,000,000,000). Provided that a
domestic insurance company alrcady doing business in the Philippinos shall have a net worth by June 30,
2013 of Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (P250,000,000). Futhermore, said company must have by
December 31,2016 an additional Three Hundred Million Pesos (P300,000,000) in net worth; by
December 31,2019, an additional Three Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (P350,000,000) in net worth; and
by December 31, 2022, an additional four Hundred Million Pesos (P400,000,000) in net worth.
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Uniupai re d C apilal Re quire me nt

The Insuarce Commission provided that for purposes of detemining compliance with the law, rules
and regulations requiring that the paid-up capital should remain intact and unimpaired at all times, the
statement of financial position should show that the net worth or stockholder's equity is at least equal to
the actual paid-up capital.

The following table shows tlle n€t worth and paid-up capital ofthe Company as of December 3l, 2015
and 2014:

2015 2014

The cqpitql slructute of the Company consists of equity atttibutable to equity holders comprising issued
cdpilal and. retai ed eamings,

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the pedod.

P420,489,O14
250,000,000

P409,826,424
250,000,000

Risk-base d C apiral Require me nts
Insurance Memorandum Circular (IMC) 7-2006 Fovides for the Nsk-based capital (RBC) framework
for the nonlife insurance industry to establish the required amounls of capital to be maintained by the
companies in relation to their investment and insurance risk, Every nonlife insurance company is
annually required to maintain a minimum RBC ratio of 100% and rot fail the trend tsst. Failure to meet
the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the insurance company to the aorresponding rcgulatory
intervention which has been defined at various levels.

The RBC mtio is calculated by dividing the net worth by the RBC requirement.

The following table shows the RBC ratio as ofDecember 31,2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Nehvorth
RBC Requirement

P420,889,014
s9,742J29

P 409,826,424
65,849,253

RBC ratio 705yo 622%

The final RBC ratio can be determined only after the accounts ofthe Company have been examined by
IC.

28. DIVIDEND RESTRICTION

29. SOLVENCYREQUIREMENTS

An insurance company doing business in the Philippines shall at all tim€s maintain the minimum paid-up

capital and net worth requirements as prescribed by the Commissioner. Such solvency requirements shall
be based on intemationally accepted solvency frameworks and adopted only after due consultatiol with
the insurance industry associations.
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Neh{orth
Paid-up capital

Dividends to stockholders which the Company may declare are subject to the provision ofinsurance law
which stipulates that no such dividends may be distributed unless they originated from the excess profits
after considering retention equivalent to the paid - up oapital, the margin of solvenay, the legal reserve

fund, and all losses that may be incurred in settlement ofliabilities for taxes and expenses.
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30. SECURITY FUND CONTR]BUTION

All insurance companies doing business in the Philippines shall contribute to the Security Fund the
aggegate amount of P5,000,000. The aontributions ofthe companies shall be in direct proportion to the
companies' aggregate net worth as shown in their latest financial statements.

31. CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party litigant in a case pending in the Regional Trial Cout. As at Dec€mber 31, 2015,
the outcome of the case is uncertail. According to the Company's legal counsel, they have a good
chance ofwinning the case.

Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the Bureau of Intemal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 15-

2010 which took effect on December 29, 2010 which provides for additional information rcquired to be
disclosed in the notes to financial statements regarding taxes, duties and license fee, paid or accrued,
dudng the taxable year. Specifically, the disclosure should include the following: (a) amount of Value-
Added Tax (VAT) output taxes declared during the year with account title and amounys; (b) amount of
VAT Input taxes claimed; (c) landed cost of imports and the amount of customs duties and tariff fees; (d)
amount ofexcise taxes, classified per major product category; (e) documentary stamp tax (DST) on loan

instruments and other transactions; (0 all other taxes, local and national, license and permit fees lodged
under taxes and licenses account both under the Cost of sales and operating expense accounts; (g)
amount of withholding taxes(h) periods covered and amounts of deficiency assessments; and (i) tax
cases and amounts involved.

In compliance \rith the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010, the following taxes are either paid or
accrued by the Company.

l. The following table shows the Company's Sales and VAT output declared as of December 31,2015

and 2014:

2015 20r4

Underwriting income

VAT output

P r01,2s4,308

12,150,517

2. The amount VAT Input taxes claimed are broken down as follows

2015 2014

Beginning ofthe year

Current yeat's puchases
Domestic purchase of services

P P

5,404,550 3,343.020

Application against output VAT

Balanc€ at the end ofthe Year P - P -

s,404,550

(5,404,sso)
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32. SUPPLEMENTARY INTORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL
REVENUE

P 113,719,066

13,646,288

3,343,020

(3,343,020)
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3. Landed Cost, Customs' Duties and TariffFees

The Company did not have any importations in 2015 and 2014 that would require for the payment

ofcustoms duties and tariff fees.

4. Excise Tax

The Company did not have any transactions in 2015 and 2014 which are subject to excise tax.

5. Documentary Stamp Tax

The Company paid P16,038,807 and PI1,451,073 as ofDecembq 31, 2015 and 2014, rcspectiv€ly

6. Taxes and Licenses

The details oftaxes and lic€nses are sho'xn as part ofexpenses follows:

2015 20t4

Local

Community tax

Business tfies and others

P 10,500

1,262,698

10,500

835,120

P

P 1,273,198 P 84 0

7. Withholding taxes

The details of total withholding taxes paid and accrued for the year ended December 3 I , 20 I 5 and
2014 are as follows:

2015

National Internel Revenue Taxcs
Withholding taxes

Expand€d Withholding Tax
Final Withholding Tax
Withholding Tax on Compensation

P 3,945,311

2836p42
2,019,160

P 2,884,553

3.053,871

2,188,089

8. Deficiency Tax Assessments and Tax Cases

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company did not have any final deficiency tax assessments
from the BIR nor does it have tax cases outstanding or pending in courts or bodies outside of the
BIR in any ofthe open yeam.

JJ

2014

P 8,800,513 P 8,126,513



DMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINA}|ICIAL STATEMENTS

Rerenue Regulation No. 19-2011

l. Revenues/ReceiptYFees

2015

Underwriting income P 140,767,208

2. Cost ofServices

2015

UNDERWRITING EXPENSES
Agellts' commission and expenses

Claims, losses paid and adjustment expenses

P 38,387,554

38,004,885

COST OF SERVICES
Salmies and wages

Omcers and employees benefits
Taxes and licenses

Professional fees

Pdnting, stationery and supplies
Communication and postage

Repairs and maintenance

9,900,076
t,697,031
t,273,198
1,056,631

735,850

547,510

305,32s
15,515,621

P |6,989,42'7

3. Non-operating and Taxable Other Income

2015

Gain on sale ofproperty
Others

P 325,202
264,339

P 589,541

54

These Revenue Regulations are issued to prcscribe the new BIR Forms that will be used for Income Tax
filing covering and starting with Calendar Year 2011, and to modify Revenue Memorandum Circular No.
57-2011.



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPAIIY
NOTES TO FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

4. Itemized Deduction

2015

Salaries and wages

Bonus
Depreciation and amortization (Note 9)
Professional fees

Rental expenses

Light and water
Transportation and havel
Representation and entertainment
Officers' and employees benefits
Communication and postage

Directors' fees and allowances
Printing stationery and supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Interest
Donations and contributions
Miscellaneous expenses

P 28,385,754

5. Taxes and Licenses

The details of the Company's taxes and licenses are presented in No. 5 and 6 of Revenue Regulation
No.l5-2010 notes.

6. Other Information

All other information prescribed to be disclosed by the BIR has been included in this note.

P 4,242,889
2,686,795
1,835,075
1,056,632
r,000,643

928,808
924,098
787,738
727,298
547,510
478,500
315,365
130,854

81,519
43,322

59,366
12,539,342

5J



es M. A. MERCADO & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
2'109 Cityland 10 Tower 1

156 H.V Dela Costa Street
6815 Ayala Avenue North
1226 Makati City, Philippines

Phone +63 (2) 894-5783
+63 (2) 893-1509
+63 (2) 894-4793
mercado cpas@yahoo.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
Mandaluyong City

In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. I l, series of 2008 and pursuant to Sections 43 and 143 of
the Corporation Code of the Philippines and Section 5 of the Securities Regulation Code, the amount of
retained eamings available for dividend declaration as at December 31, 2015 is P63,2EE,37E as presented in
the attached Annex "A" of Empirc Insurance Company.

M.A. MERCADO & CO.

/.,"
MARCf,LINO A. MERCADO
P artnet (s igni ig lor tlre fir,rr)
CPA License No. 066885
Tax Identification No. 102-921-222
P-T.R. No.5334717; Issued on January 6,2015, Makati City
BIR Accreditation No. 08-003338-2-2015
lssued September 29,2015: Valid until September 29,2018
IC AccreditationNo. SP-2015-003-0
Issued April T,20l5; Valid until April T,2018
Firm's BOA/PRC Cen. ofReg No.5658
lssu€d February I 7, 201 5; valid until Decemb€r 3l , 2017
Firm's BIR Accreditation No. 08-0061 73-000-201 5

Issued March 26, 2015; Valid until March 26,2018
Firm's IC Accreditation No.F-2015-001-o
Issued April7,20l5; Valid until April7,20l8
SEC Accreditrtion No. I 533-A (Group C)
Issued February 3,2016;Valid until February 2,2019
Firm's SEC Acctrditation No. 0320-F (C,roup C)
Issued February 3,2016; Valid until February 2,2019

r-ACi;r ,
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GRACiAAUR RA'1. CASTiL\-)

April 15,2016

MAM & Co.

Fax:

E-mail:
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EMPIRE INSI]RANCE COMPAIIY
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

December 31, 2015

15,287,725

Annex t'A"

P 108,509,641

15,287,725

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted to available
for dividend distribution, beginning

Add: Net income actually eamed/realized during the period

Net income during the period closed to Retained Eamings
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Equity in net income of associate / joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those

attributable to cash and cash equivalents)
Unrealized actuarial gain

Fair value adjustment (M2M gains)

Fair value adjustment of Investment Property resulting to gain

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - gain

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained eamings

as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the FPRS

Sub-total

Add: Non-actual losses

Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - losses

Deferred tax assets

Effect ofchange in accounting
for employee benefits (PAS 19)

Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (after tax)

Net income actually eamed during the period

Add(Less):
Dividend declarations during the period

Margin of solvency
Legal reserve fund
Effects of prior period adjustments

Treasury shares

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END AVAILABLE
FORDIVIDEND

15,287,725

(500,000)
(60,008,988)

- (60,508,999)

_B_€,28E,37q_



e&MAM & Co.

Phone

Fax:

E-mail

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

M. A. MERCAOO & Co.
Ceft ifi ed Public Accountants
2109 Cityland '10 Tower 1

156 H.V Dela Costa Slreet
68'l5 Ayala Avenue North
1226 Makati City, Philippines

+6s (2) 894-5783
+63 (2) 893-1509
+63 (2) 8944793
mercado_cpas@yahoo.com

The Shareholders and the Board ofDirectors
Empire Insurance Compatry
2nd Floor Prudential Life Plan Bldg.
843 A. Amaiz Street, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements of Empire lnsurance Company as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2015, on which we have rendered the attaohed report, dated April 15, 2016.

In compliance with SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the Company has one hundred twenty three (123)
shareholders each owning 100 or more shares as ofDecember 31, 2015 as disclosed in Note l9 to the
Iinancial statements.

M.A. MERCADO & CO.

k
MARCELINO A. MERCADO
P ufier (s igning {ot the I rir)
CPA License No. 066885
Tax tdentification No. 1 02-921-222

P.T.R. No.5334717; tssued on January 6,2015, MakatiCity
BIR Accreditation No. 08403338-2-2015
Issued September 29, 2015; Valid until September 29, 2018
IC Ac.credihtionNo. SP-2015-003-O
Issued April7,20l5; valid until April 7,2018
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. ofReg. No.5558
Issued February I 7, 201 5; Valid until De.€mber 3 I , 201 7

Firm's BIR Accreditation No. 08-0061 ?3400-201 5

Issued March26,2015; valid until March 25,2018
Firm's IC Accrcditation No.F-201 5401O
Issued April T,2015; valid until April T,2018
SEC Accreditation No. I 533-A (Group C)
Issued February 3,2016: Validuntil February 2,2019
Firm's SEC Accreditation N0.0320-F (Group C)
Issued February 3,2016; valid until F€bruary 2,2019

April 15,2016
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
SCHEDULE SHOWING F'INANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

IN TWO COMPARATIVE PERIODS
UNDER SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 31,2015

2015 2014

ASSET MANAGEME"IT
Asset turnover
Fixed asset turno'ver

SOLVENCY
Solvency ratio

Deh-to-eqrity ratio
Equity-tGasseb ratio

Asset-to-equity ratio

Debt ratio

LIQI'IDITYMANAGEMENT
Current ratio

Quickratio

PROFITABILITYRATIO
Gros profit margin

Operatingprofit nurgin
Netprofit rnargin

Return on equity
Return on assets

0.02
2.68

0.08

0.52
0.66
1.52

0.34

1.92

1,24

0.03

3.47

0.08
0.56
0.64

L56
0.36

1.32

0.90

28o/o

llVo
llo
4o/o

2Vo

29o/o

t4%
15%

4o/o

3o/o

1. ASSET MANAGEMENT

a. Asset turnover ratio calculates the total revenue for every peso of assets a Company owns. There are

general rule that should be kept in mind when calculating asset turnover. Asset turnover is meant to
measure a Company's effrciency in using its assets. The higher the number, the better, although
investors must be sure to compare a business with the same line of industry. It is fallacy to compare
completely unrelated businesses. The higher a Company's asset tumover, the lower its profit margin
tends to be (and vice versa).

For every peso of assets on hand, the Company is generating 2 centavos and 3 centavos in sales as of
December 3 1, 2015 and 2ll4,respectively.

b. Fixed asset turnover measures a Company's ability to generate net income from fixed assets. A
higher fixed ass€t turnover ratio shows that the Company has been more effective in using the
investment in fixed assets to generate income.

As of December 31, 2015, and20l4, the Company's fixed assets tumover is 2.68 and 3.47,
respectively.

2. SOLVENCY

a. Solvency ratio quantifies the size of the Company's after tax income, no counting non-cash
depreciation expenses, as contrasted to the total debt obligations ofthe Company excluding deferred
tax liabilities. Acceptable solvency ratios vary from industry to industry. However, as a general rule
of thumb, a solvency ratio higher than20Yo is considered financially sound.

b. Debt-to-equity ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total equity. This ratio shows the
financial flexibility and the long-term capital structure of the Company. The rule of thumb, debt

equity ratio should not be more than 2:1.



c. Equity-to-asset ratio measures the proportion of Company's assets financed by the owner's equity.
The equity to asset ratio of the Company indicates that each of peso of equity, the Company has i6
and .64 in assets as of December 31,2015 and2014, respectively.

d. Asset-to-equity ratios used as a measure of the company's leverage and long-term solvency. It
compares total assets to total shareholder equity.

e. Debt ratio indicates what proportion of debt a company has relative to its assets. The measure gives
an idea to the leverage of the company along with the potential risks the company faces in terms of its
debt-load.

f. The interest coverage ratio is used to determine how easily a Company can pay interest expenses on
outstanding debt. The ratio is calculated by dividing a Company's earnings before interest and taxes
(EBIT) by the Company's interest expenses for the same period. The lower the ratio interest
coverage, the larger the debt burden is on the Company. Also known as interest coverage.

As of December 31, 2015 and2}l4,the Company has no long-term debt.

3. LIQUIDITYMANAGEMENT

a. Cunent ratio is the most commonly used measure of the liquidity of a Company. This ratio measures
how many pesos of cunent assets are available to pay one peso worth of current liabilities.

Ifthe ratio is less than l, current liabilities exceed current assets and the Company's liquidity is
threatened. A high current ratio is a favorable condition financially because it indicates the ability to
pay current liabilities from conversion ofcurrent assets into cash. The rule ofthumb has been that a

current ratio below 2 suggests the possibility of liquidity problems. The current ratio is current assets

divided by the current liabilities.

The Company is able to cover every peso of its current obligations with I .92 and I .32 in current
assets as ofDecember 31,2015 and,20l4, respectively.

b. Quick ratio also known as liquid ratio considers only the liquid forms of current assets thus revealing
the Company's reliability on inventory and other current assets to settle short-term debts. As of
December 31,2015 and2014, the quick ratio of the Company is 1.24 and .90, respectively.

4. PROFITABILITY RATIO

Profitability ratios (also referred to as profit margin ratios) compare components of income with sales.

They give us an idea of what makes up a Company's income and are usually expressed as a portion of
each peso of sales.

a. Gross profit margin ratio indicates how much of every peso of revenues is left after cost of services.

b. Operating profit margin is a ratio that indicates how much of each peso of revenues is left over after

operating expenses.

c. Net profit margin indicates how much ofeach peso ofrevenues is left over after all expenses.

d. Return on equity measures the percentage return on the actual investments made by the stockholders.

As a rule of thumb, companies with return on equity significantly below 15% are doing poorly.

Companies with return on equity consistently above l5Yo are doing well.

e. Return on assets ratio measures how efficiently profits are being generated from the assets employed.

The higher the return, the more efficient management is in utilizing its asset base. As a rule of thumb,

return on assets should not be less than 5%.

I



g'bMAM & Co.

The Shareholders and the Board of Directors
Empire Insurance Company
2nd Floor Prudential Life Plan Btdg.
843 A. Amaiz Street, Makati City

M. A. MERCADO & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
2109 Cityland 10 Tower 1

156 H.V Dela Costa Street
6815 Ayala Avenue North
1226 Makati City, Philippines

Phone: +63 (2)894-5783
+63 (2) 893-1509
+63 (2) 8944793
mercado cpas@yahoo.com

Fax:

E-mail

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Slandards on Auditing the financial statements of Empire
Insurance Company as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and have issued our repot thereon daled
April 15, 2016. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule ofall effective standards and interpretations is the responsibility
ofthe Company's management. This schedule is presented for the purpose ofcomplying with Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011) and is not part ofthe basic financial statements. This schedule

has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, fairly states, in all material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in rclation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

I
M.A. MERCADO &

MARCELINO A. MERCADO
P afier (s igning lor t he im)
CPA Lic.ense No. 066885
Tax Identification No. 102-921-222
P.T.R. No. 5334717: Issued on January 6, 2015, Makati City
BIR Ac.4redil,ation No. 08-003338-2-201 5
tssued September 29, 2015; valid until September 29, 2018
lC Accrcdilalion No. SP-2015-003O
Issued April7,2015: Valid until April 7,2018
Firm's BOADRC Cert. of Reg. No. 5658
Issued February 1?, 201 5; Valid mtil December 3l , 201 7

Firm's BIR Accreditation No. 08-0061 73{00-201 5

Issued March 26,2015; Valid until March26,20l8
Firm's IC Ac-cre-ditation No.F-2015{01-O
Issued April 7,2015; valid unril April T, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. I 533-A (Group C)
Issu€d February 3, 2016; Valid until February 2,2019
Firm's SEC Accreditalioo No. 032GF (Group C)
hsued Fcbruary 3,2016; Vslid until Fetruary 2,2019

Date

fu1A. G
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RACiA AURORA L. CASTILLO

April 15,2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
Philippine Financisl Reporting Standards (PFRSs)

and Interpretations
Effective as of December 31,2015

PFRSS AND INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as ofDecember 31,2015

Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

FraDework for the Prcparation and PreseDtatiou ofFitrancial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and quantitative
characteristics
PFRSS Practice Statement Management Commctrtary

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost ofan
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate
Amendments to PFRS l: Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS l: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severc Hyperinflation and

Removal ofFixed Date for First-time Adopters

PFRS I
(Revised)

Amendments to PFRS l: Govemment Loans
Share-based Payment
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and

Cancellations

PFRS 2

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-

based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3
(Revised)

Business Combinations

Insuranae ContractsPFRS 4
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee

Contracts
PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations
PFRS 6 Exploratior for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Financial lnstruments; Disclosures
Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosure about
Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfer of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities

PFRS 7

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 8 OperatinA Segments

Financial lnstrumentsPFRS 9
Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

IIIIIIII
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PFRSS AND INTERPRETATIONS
Effectiv€ as of December 31, 2015

Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable
P['RS IO Consolidated Financial Statements

P['RS I I Joint Arrangements

PFRS 12 Disclosurc oflnterest in Other Entities
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Philippitre AccoutrtiDg Standards
Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS l: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS l: Puttable Financial
Insbuments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

PAS 1

(Revised)

Ameldment to PAS l: Prcsentation ofltems ofOther
Comprehensive Income

InventoriesPAS 2
PAS 7 Statements of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

and Errom
PAS 8

PAS 10 Ev€nts After the Repofting Period
PAS 11 Constuction Contracts

Income TaxesPAS 12

Amendment to PAS 12 - Defened Tax Recovery of
Assets

Property, Plant and EquipmentPAS 16

LeasesPAS 17
RevenuePAS 18
Employee BenefitsPAS 19

Amendments to PAS 19: Actuadal Gains and Losses,

Group Plans and Disclosures

PAS 19
(Amended)

Employee Benefits

PAS 20 Accounting for Govemment Grants and Disclosures of
Government Assistance

The Effect ofChanges in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
PAS 21

PAS 23
(Revised)

Bonowing Cost

PAS 24
(Revised)

Related Partv Disclosures

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

PAS 27
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

PAS 28 lnvestments in Associates

PAS 2E
(Amended)

Investments in Associates and Joint venturcs

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

Interests in Joint VentwesPAS 31
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification ofRights lssues

PAS 32

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities
PAS 33 Eamings per Share

PAS 34 lnte m Financial Reporting

IIIIII II
IIII

IIIIIII-
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A&pted Not
Adopaed

Not
ApdicaHe

PFRSs AND INTRPRETATIONS
Effectirc as ofDecember 31,2015
PAS 36 Impairrpnt ofAssets
PAS 37 Provisions, Crntingent Liabilities ard Contingent Assots
PAS 38 Iotangible Assets

Financial Instrurnents: Recognition ard Measurerreot
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition
ofFinancial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Am€ndments to PAS 39: Cash FlowHedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
ArrEndments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option
Arnendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
C-ontmcts

ArrEndrnents to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets
AnEndments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Finacial Assets - mective Date and Transistion
Arrrndrrrnts to Philippine Interyrctation IFRIC - 9 and
PAS 39: Embedded

PAS 39

Arnondments to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items

PAS 40 InvestnEnt Prcperty

PAS 41 Agriculture
PhilipIitre Interpr€tations

Ctanges in Bisting Decorffnissioning, Restoration ard
Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 1

Members'Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Intsruments

IFRIC 2

IIRIC 4 Dqtomining Whether an Arrangement Contains a l€ase
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interest Arising from Decormissioning ,

Restoration and EnvironEFntal Rehabilitation Funds
IFR.IC 6 Liabilities arising from Participatlng in a Specific Market-

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC 7 AppVing the Restaternent Approach underPAS 29

Financiat Reporting under Hyperinflationary Economies

TFRIC 8 Scope ofIFRS 2

Reassessment of Erbedded Derivatives
Amendrnents to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC - 9 and
PAS 39: Ernbedded Derivatives

IFRIC 9

Interim Financial Repoftins and ImDairrnentIFRIC 10

IFRIC 11 PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Shares Trarsactions

IFRIC 12 Service Concess ion Arrangerrents

IFRIC 13 C\rstomer lryalty ProglErr nes

Tho Limit on a Defined Benefrt As set, Minirrum Funding
Req uirernents and their Interaction

IFRIC 14

Arnendmcnts to Philippine Interprctations IFRIC-14,
Prepayments of a MinirnrmFunding rcquirernnt.

IFRIC 16 Hedgcs ofa Net Lrvestment in a Foreign Operations

ITRIC 17 Distributions ofNon-Cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC I8 Transfer ofAssets to Customers

IFRIC 19 Bainguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instrunrents
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase ofa Surface

Mine
SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro
sIc-10 Govemment Assistance - No Specific Relation to

Operating Activities

II
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II
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Not
AdoEed

Not
ApdicaHe

PFRS s AND INTRPRETATIONS
Efrectile as ofDecember 31,2015

AdoEed

src-l2 C-onsolidation - Special Purpose Entities
Amendrnent to SIC - 12: Scope ofSIC 12

src-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions
by Ventures

src-15 Opgrating lrases - Incentives
sIc-25 lncome T {es - Changes in the Tax Status ofan Entity or

its Shareholders
stc:27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions involving

the Ifgal form of a I-eas e

sIc-29 Service Concession Arangaments: Disclosures

src-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services

SIC.32 Intangible Asscts - website Crsts
II
I



CERTIFICATION

I, MARCELINO A. MERCADO, Managing Partner of M. A. MERCADO & CO., Certified
Public Accountants, of legal age, married and a resident of Topaz St., St. Francis Homes VII, San
Antonio, Bifian, Laguna, having been duly swom on oath certifi:

l. That to enable IC to take timely and appropriate remedial action, I must report to IC within
30 calendar days after discovery, the following cases:

b. Under-reserving of Incured But Not Reported (IBNR) losses/policy reserves, the
aggregate of which leads to capital deficiency/impairment.

c. Any findings to the effect that the consolidated assets ofthe company, on a going-concem
basis, are no longer adequate to cover the total liabilities.

d. Material internal control weaknesses which may lead to financial reporting problems.

e. Termination or resignation as external auditor and stating the reason therefore;

f. Discovery ofa material breach of laws or IC rules and regulations.

g. Findings on matters of corporate govemarce that may require urgent action by IC.

2. That in case there are no matters to report (e.g. fraud, dishonesty, breach of laws, etc.) I shall
submit directly to IC within 15 calendar days after the closing of the audit engagement a
notarized certification that there is none to report.

3. That the management of Empire Insurance Company including its subsidiaries and

affiliates, shall be informed of the adverse findings. Our report to the IC shall include
pertinent explanation and/or corrective action.

4. That it is understood that our accountability is based on matters within the normal coverage of
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
non-audit services provided herewith.

/L
MARCELINO A. MERCADO

Affiant

tLB $g m16

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN before me this _ day of February 2016 at Makati City affiant
exhibited lo me his T.l.N. 102-921-222.

identified

A.P JR,

I ClfY

Doc. No. lf
P"ne No.-7?
nolot No. -Tf
Series of20l6

EliT lto. tI{rl /

P-J,;L,a.l.'4tt&2

i,{Artclfl
Rt2,*,
tv*vtt

a. Any material findings involving fraud or error, as defined under Section 3.3 and 3.4 of
Circular Letter 29-2009;


